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Consolidated total operating revenue EBITDA-EBIT-statement

Key Figures

Oct. 1, 2008 to Oct. 1, 2007 to
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 in percent Sept. 30, 2008 in percent

Net sales 58,153 88 % 68,286 89 %

Capitalized work 7,736 12 % 8,033 11 %

Total output 65,889 100 % 76,319 100 %

Cost of materials 14,139 21 % 16,478 22 %

Personnel expenditure excluding depreciation 13,690 21 % 15,552 20 %

Production costs excluding depreciation 27,830 42 % 32,031 42 %

Gross profit 38,059 58 % 44,289 58 %

Research and development total 10,187 15 % 10,803 14 %

Sales and marketing costs 10,024 15 % 10,818 14 %

Administration costs 3,688 6 % 4,322 6 %

Sales and administration costs excluding depreciation 13,711 21 % 15,138 20 %

Other operating expenditure/revenue 1,021 2 % 256 0 %

EBITDA 15,182 23 % 18,603 24 %

Depreciation and amortization  5,921 9 % 5,666 7 %

Total costs 29,819 45 % 31,608 41 %

EBIT 9,261 14 % 12,937 17 %

Financial result -1,000 -2 % -1,601 -2 %

EBT 8,261 13 % 11,336 15 %

Taxes 1,844 3 % 3,346 4 %

Net profit 6,418 10 % 7,990 10 %

Minority interests -49 0 % 409 1 %

Net profit after minority interests 6,466 10 % 7,581 10 %

Selected financial data
Percentage

(in F thousand/%) 30.9.2009 30.9.2008 change

ROCE (Return on Capital Employed) 8 % 11 % 

Equity Ratio 57 % 51 %

Cash-flow from operating activities 16,358 6,375 157 %

Fund assets September, 30 7,168 12,544 – 43 % 

Earnings per share in E 1.52 1.76 – 14 % 

Dividend per share in E 0.15* 0.15 0 % 

Equity per share in E 19.07 17.54 9 % 

Shares issued 4,258,140 4,317,050 – 1 % 

No of employees (annual average) 361 372 – 3 % 

* subject to the agreement of the General Meeting
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Disclaimer - Forward-looking statements
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statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of these materials.
For technical reasons (e.g. conversion of electronic formats) there may be variances between the accounting documents contained in this annual report and those submitted to the electronic Federal
Gazette (Bundesanzeiger). In this case, the version submitted to the electronic Federal Gazette shall be binding. Both language versions of the annual report can be downloaded from the internet at
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Dear shareholders, dear business partners, ISRA friends and dear ISRA employees:

During the fiscal year 2008/2009, ISRA was able to stand strong despite the fluctuations in the econ-
omy. Operating cash flow within the Group saw an improvement of more than 150 percent or ten
million Euros to 16.4 million Euros. Thanks to strong liquid assets, short-term bank loans in the
amount of 11.3 million Euros were repaid. In doing so, ISRA reduced its net liabilities by 15 percent
to 22.0 million Euros. Interest expenses were reduced during the year under review by more than a
third to one million Euros. As in the previous year, the company reached a net profit margin (con-
solidated net profit to revenue) of eleven percent (as compared to total output:  ten percent). Good
profitability strengthened the equity by 5.5 million Euros to 81.2 million Euros. The equity ratio
improved by six percentage points to 57 percent - a solid basis for future growth.

In the year under review, the multi-segment strategy was the key to the solid business development
in a difficult economic environment. ISRA is diversified with a standardized product portfolio via dif-

ferent image processing technologies for different applications as well as throughout different industries and regions with
different economic cycles. ISRA serves a large number of customers globally, in general the Global Players of the parti -
cular industry. Even though ISRA's business transactions were significantly more stable than those on average in the 
German machine vision industry, for the first time in twelve years, we did not see an increase in business revenue due to
the uncertainties triggered by the global financial and economic crisis. 

With consolidated revenues reported at 58.2 million Euros (previous year: 68.3 million Euros), ISRA stands out positively
as compared to some of the, in part severe, collapses in the industry. EBIT reached 9.3 million Euros (previous year: 12.9
million Euros) and the EBT is reported at 8.3 million Euros (previous year: 11.3 million Euros). The EBIT margin at 16 per-
cent and the EBT margin at 14 percent of revenues (as compared to total output: EBIT margin 14 percent, EBT margin
13 percent) was within the target range forecasted by the Board of Direc-
tors. Consolidated net profit reached 6.5 million Euros (previous year: 7.6
million Euros). Extensive one-time expenses for measures implemented
to reduce costs are already included in the figures reported for the busi-
ness for 2008/2009. 

Measures that were introduced very early with the intent of increasing
productivity and efficiency assured the Group's profitability. They light-
ened the cost base considerably by more than four million Euros. Still, the
savings had no impact on overall performance and were primarily offset
by increased productivity and synergies. Additional internal strategic 
projects are being planned with the intention of discovering even more
potential for optimization with regard to efficiency and production over the
next two years.

By following its sales and innovation offensive, ISRA is preparing the
course to long-term growth. Management is planning on introducing
more than 20 new solutions to customers within the next two years. This
is because innovations are the most crucial factor in driving growth. After
successfully completed tests, customers with worldwide operations usu-
ally tend to integrate ISRA products and solutions step-by-step in their
manufacturing facilities at all of their international production sites. More
expansion opportunities result when innovative products are then inte-
grated in their upstream and downstream production steps. This way,
ISRA attempts to consistently increase its market share by developing
new technologies for its existing customers, or by enhancing the cus-

Enis Ersü, 
CEO

2009: Strategy defies the crisis
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tomers' already available technologies. In addition, the company focuses on acquiring additional
customers in already existing industries - and goes further by developing relationships in regions that
up to now have not been exploited. ISRA also applies its expertise and skills acquired in its 25 years
in business to solutions for customers in other industries. 

ISRA continues to focus on long-term growth. In terms of revenues, it is planning to surpass the
benchmark of 100 million Euros within the next few years. One component of its growth strategy still
is external growth. Management is currently conducting promising talks with some targets so that a
further acquisition is possible even in the first half of financial year 2009/2010. In November 2009,
the group acquired a minority interest in the Turkish company Vistek, a spin-off of the Sabanci Uni-
versity. The participation in the Istanbul Machine Vision specialist provides further growth opportuni-
ties for ISRA due to a higher market penetration in Turkey and also within the whole Middle East
region and Southwest Asia. With extended service and on-site support, ISRA increases its customers’
benefit in the region and is able to optimize its cost structure at the same time. Furthermore, through

the additional application know-how, ISRA gains access to customers in new industries. According to experts, the growth
dynamic will accelerate in the Middle East and Southwest Asia region. 

Last year, the industry put several, in part critical, investment projects on hold. From experience, it can be expected that
these investments will be made in the following years. The rise in the order backlog to approximately 33 million Euros in
February 2010 is a good indication that the temporary dent in revenue caused by the economic crisis has overcome its
lowest point. Information provided by customers indicates that growth can again be expected in the second half of the fis-
cal year 2009/2010. Cost reduction measures introduced at the right time have already resulted in considerably lower
costs during the first quarter of the new fiscal year. These efforts will be helped along with large-scale programs aimed at
increasing efficiency and productivity and by continuing to make the production processes leaner. Should, as expected,

the economy continue to recover, executive management is projecting
slightly higher business revenue for the entire fiscal year 2009/2010 (Octo-
ber 1, 2009 - September 30, 2010) while the profit margin will at least
remain stable (EBT margin = net profit before taxes to total output). 

As a listed company, our business activities are guided by the objective
towards sustainable value creation. By making use of our multi-segment
strategy, we have positioned ourselves broadly and are thus not quite as
vulnerable to adverse fluctuations in the economy that affect individual
industries and regions. The markets that we supply with our wide range of
products and solutions all play a significant role in improving tomorrow's
quality of life. That is why they are huge, they grow dynamically or at least
remain stable for longer periods of time. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board, I would like
to take this opportunity to thank you, valued shareholders and customers,
for the confidence that you placed in us, and you, valued business partners,
for the mutually beneficial collaboration. I would like to express my sincere
appreciation to you, our valued employees, for your efforts to overcome the
financial crisis in the fiscal year 2008/2009.

Sincerely yours,

Enis Ersü, Chairman of the Board
on behalf of ISRA management
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Dr.-Ing. h.c. H. J. Wiedenhues,
Chairman of Supervisory Board
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ISRA VISION systems focus on production of goods      

ISRA, a globally active technology company, is one of the world’s top five suppliers of industrial image processing (machine
vision) solutions. The core competence is the technology of machine vision. In the industrial automation sector, the compa-
ny holds the leading position among suppliers of 3D robot vision. ISRA’s main focus is teaching industrial robots how to see
by means of optical systems. With the systems installed, these robots can then imitate the interaction between the human eye
and arm and use those skills to recognize and grip workpieces, even those in motion, within a specific area. ISRA is the glob-
al market leader in surface inspection systems. At highest speeds, ISRA systems are able to perform a 100% inspection of
surfaces on materials such as metal, paper, glass, foils and film, nonwovens and other printed materials – even surfaces print-
ed in color – seeking out and detecting the tiniest of defects. ISRA offers a full range of products all from one source, from
a broadly diversified array of generic standard products to customized machine vision solutions based on application-spe-
cific standard products. ISRA solutions increase efficiency in the manufacturing process, ensure product quality and reduce
the amount of resources consumed, thereby raising the quality of life for humans and additionally reducing the costs of 
production. 

The multi-segment strategy of ISRA ensures the company’s long-term growth. A variety of technologies – in several business
units – are developed and marketed by the company, providing solutions to many different industries and regions. ISRA
focuses its expertise on automated and efficient manufacturing of premium products that have special importance in the lives
of human beings, because their purpose is to satisfy basic human needs and not simply short-term fashion trends. Today,
these are products offered in the industry sectors energy, healthcare, food, transportation as well as information technology.

Innovations
for an efficient and sustainable “tomorrow’s world”

Film/NonwovensSolar Glass

MetalGlass

FoodHealthcareEnergy
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     and materials for sustainable future markets

These markets are subject to dynamic growth or are at least stable long-term markets. Each of ISRA’s business units sup-
plies its products to several of these future-proof markets. By following this strategy, ISRA is guaranteed to be widely diversi-
fied even in the organization's smallest units. This increases the opportunities for growth and minimizes the risks of being
affected by fluctuations in the economy.

Components manufactured by machinery equipped with ISRA solutions are not only installed in solar power plants for the
purpose of efficiently generating alternative and renewable energy sources. They also increase the efficiency in the manufac-
turing of glass, metal, paper, foil and film products as well as nonwovens. In the food industry, ISRA technology is used to
inspect the packaging of beverages in coated boxes. ISRA also “sees” products in healthcare sectors, from medicine, phar-
maceutical products to body care items. In addition, ISRA products are installed in the transportation sector – over land, at sea
and in the air – and also in the communication and information technology markets – in televisions, telephones and cameras. 

For 25 years, global market leaders have put their trust in the solutions offered by ISRA and have made the company a leader
in the machine vision industry. The engineers and technicians at ISRA work intensely at coming up with innovative ideas on
how to continuously improve products and processes and to develop new ones. Doing so will make ISRA even more 
competitive and will provide to the customers the technical and economic advantage they need to be leaders in their 
markets. Clearly focused on an efficient and sustainable tomorrow’s world, ISRA intends to strengthen its position and
expand it further. 

Paper

Print Display Glass

Automotive

Transportation Information
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All surface inspection systems offered by ISRA ensure that products are produced more efficiently - whether this relates
to the manufacturing of steel, the production of glass, the manufacturing of coated or printed materials, films, nonwovens,
paper or products manufactured for the display and solar glass industry. The benefits: rejected material will be 
minimized and the saleable output will be optimized. This reduces manufacturing costs and raises productivity.

With the ability to inspect films used for manufacturing lithium-ion batteries one hundred percent, their storage
capacity is increased significantly. In the construction industry, the ability to save energy by providing opti-

mum thermal insulation is very important. For customers in this industry, ISRA offers systems that are
applied in the inspection of the coating of construction glass. 

Because the power of the sun is almost limitless and is available at no cost, solar energy 
generation and photovoltaics are rapidly gaining acceptance. In this industry sector, ISRA has
taken on a pioneering role. Using this industry as an example, the company offers a wide
range of products as turnkey solutions that are used to inspect the quality and to optimize
processes in the manufacturing of thin film solar cells. In doing so, the fully automated
inspection combined with tools for process optimization maximizes the rate of return of the
production facilities. Because of the extremely good resolution in the μm range, even the
smallest defects are detected reliably at a maximum sheet width of several meters and at
highest production speeds. No other system in its class has the ability to inspect material
surfaces faster and more accurately. With these systems, customers benefit from thin film

solar cells with maximum efficiency ratings.

In solar-thermal power plants it is critical that curved reflectors can accurately focus the sun’s
light, that means their 3D-shape and their curve have to be precise. The inspection of solar 

parabolic reflectors with solutions offered by ISRA makes the process easier, faster and more
accurate. This increases overall energy output. 

Around the world, efforts to reduce the costs of alternative energy are running at full speed. ISRA systems
for example have the capability to optimize the energy efficiency of a wide range of different solar equipment

types. Moreover, ISRA solutions used in automation, inspection and production optimization ensure that
resources are used efficiently in a large variety of industrial manufacturing sectors.

Energy : Machine Vision for higher efficiency
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医療

Healthcare: Focus on product quality

医疗保健

Whether in medical technology, for the pharmaceuticals industry or for body care products, solutions by ISRA ensure opti-
mal production and one hundred percent inspection of the manufactured products. Moreover, many of the materials that
are needed in a hospital are inspected on ISRA systems. This ranges from coated films used in the packaging of hypo-
dermic needles, to nonwovens for bandaging materials and apparel. It also includes the inspection of any type of glass
and top grade steels used in medical or flat screens incorporated into the latest monitoring and diagnostic solutions. 

In particular the pharmaceuticals industry is a field that involves a great deal of reliability and warranty risks.
Faulty labeling, for example, may have life-threatening consequences. In order to conscientiously man-

age risks of this nature, ISRA supplies modern solutions to the pharmaceuticals industry, which is
especially designed to monitor the safety, quality and process optimization of packaging materi-

als. With it, manufacturers have the tools to reliably handle the entire process chain, including
processes such as sheet inspection at highest production speeds, the ability to sort out faulty

cardboard packaging, the monitoring of package inserts and the inspection of package
labeling.

Companies that manufacture body care products make use of similar systems to moni-
tor print quality and inspect packaging. Using the body care industry as an example, in
the manufacturing of diapers, large amounts of film and nonwovens are incorpo rated
into the product, which have been inspected by ISRA equipment beforehand.

Drugs, medical and body care products can help to keep people healthy or to improve
a person's wellbeing. If used incorrectly, however, they can very often have catastrophic

results. Inspection solutions by ISRA play an important role in guaranteeing the quality of
the products, in detecting mislabelling and avoiding incorrect instruction leaflets.

Healthcare
Healthcare

Sanidad
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High-quality food products must be inspected, in some cases gauged and carefully sorted, and then arranged to be visu-
ally appealing in their packaging. This poses huge challenges to the food industry. ISRA solutions are useful tools when
it comes to the automatic inspection and packaging of food products and to ensure that goods that are unusable can be
elaminated. Gripper elements can carefully take up defect-free products from a running conveyor belt and then fit them
accurately into sales packaging.

Essentially, modern food packaging fulfills three important tasks. It is designed to make the consumer aware
of the package’s contents and make the product appear appetizing. Furthermore, it assures the con-

tent’s quality, so that it is in line with hygiene requirements and the product remains fresh for as
long as possible. In the field of food packaging, ISRA offers a wide range of solutions that can

be applied in processes such as the printing of packaging, the inspection of packaging
material, coating applications – such as aluminum coating – and even for beverage cans

and boxes. In the manufacturing of food foils, regardless of whether these are coated,
laminated or printed, the number of tiny defects that can occur is huge and these
must by any means be detected and avoided. As one of very few companies around
the world, ISRA has been setting the standard with regard to foil and film inspection.
The product portfolio covers all processing steps in web and sheet production,
beginning in the extrusion stage and covering the coating, laminating, cutting and
wrapping processes and finally concluding with the printing stage.

For the quality inspection of products such as coated beverage boxes, ISRA sup-
plies systems which have the capability of inspecting them for defects at speeds of

hundreds of meters a minute and to do so without missing a beat. Especially at high-
est processing speeds, the ability to detect defects reliably is crucial, because even the

smallest defect can quickly result in huge losses. Possible extension of the product 
portfolio is to include solutions used in the sorting of food products.

Food is the basis of life. Perfect packaging ensures that food can be preserved longer and still
look appealing, that it is portioned based on consumer needs, and is easier to transport. This way,

the security of supply is increased, while costs are reduced.

食品
⾷品

Food: Defect free sorting and perfect packaging

FoodNahrung Alimentación
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Highest possible precision, quality assurance and documentation are critical in the automotive industry. They are
tasks that in many cases cannot be reliably carried out with the human eye and manual labor alone. What in
the past took a great amount of effort to position mechanically and manually, is in today’s manufacturing world
reliably identified by “robot eyes". Robot vision systems and 3D in-line measurement technology offered by
ISRA solve the most challenging tasks absolutely reliably, even in the roughest industrial environments. ISRA
is the global leader in the field of 3D in-line machine vision technology.

For the automotive industry, ISRA offers a complete range of products - from the press to the final product. The
product portfolio includes more than 40 standard products, comprised mainly of systems for robot guid-

ance in almost every single production step. The systems have the ability to confidently solve prob-
lems in even the most difficult tasks, such as recognition of position and orientation, as well as

the identification of parts and components. One example is the automatic insertion of wind-
shields in vehicles: a robot removes a windshield from a transport container, measures the

vehicle before inserting it and then accurately positions the windshield to the tenth of a 
millimeter. As a result of the high level of fitting accuracy, air resistance is minimized and
therefore fuel consumption is reduced. In addition, wind noise at higher speeds can be 
prevented. 

ISRA inspection solutions are integrated into the manufacturing of the vehicle wind-
shields themselves. These glass front shields must be entirely defect-free and may not
even show a minimum of visual perturbations, caused for example by distortions. For the
next processing steps that take place automatically, it is absolutely critical that the fitting

accuracy is perfect. In-line inspection systems by ISRA play a major role in ensuring high-
est quality results and optimized production. Moreover, ISRA systems are integrated into

various different production stages in the automotive component supplier industry. This
begins as early as in the production of the steel and aluminum raw materials, products orig-

inating from glass, film and foil producers, as well as the nonwovens industry, and also includes
the suppliers that manufacture printed electronic circuit boards. 

To guarantee safety through highest precision manufacturing, in future the companies in the aviation
industry, as well as in the ship building industry, will apply the advances made in the automotive sector and

will develop these even further by adding similar robotized systems. In ship building, for example, when
integrating large metal components, gauging each separate component is of utmost importance so
that in the end they can all be combined to fit accurately.

Highly precise automotive solutions offered by ISRA are designed to improve processing quality and
to optimize production overall. Machine vision products have the ability to detect defects not only in

preliminary products, but also in the finished vehicles. Integrating solutions of this kind reduces the
quantity of resources consumed, increases productivity and improves safety – over land, at sea and in
the air.

交通

Transportation: 
Visual automation for more safety and precision

TransportationTransportación

Mobilität
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Flat panel displays have quickly become commonplace in our lives. Wherever you look, they are front and center in the
way we communicate, whether on our mobile phones or landline phones, whether attached to our computer or integrat-
ed into our televisions, whether at the train station or the airport. The highest demands are placed on the quality of these
technical glasses. 

Even on the most modern production lines defects cannot be entirely avoided. If these defects are not detected in
time, costs will increase exponentially with expanding size and further refinement of these glasses. ISRA offers

turn-key optical inspection systems specially designed for FPD glass (flat panel display) and solutions that
specifically address a variety of requirements along the entire production chain, ranging from the sub-

strate to the various different processes and coatings through to the finished display. Glass sizes of
five square meters and more are inspected in few seconds during the individual processing

steps.

ISRA solutions are also applied in the paper and printing sectors. ISRA is one of the world’s
leading suppliers when it comes to the inspection of banknote paper. Even electronic circuit
boards are manufactured on printing machines these days. In this case, the inspection sys-
tems not only need to be able to detect each and every defect, but they must also be able
to gather specific information about the different defect types that cause problems or inter-
ruptions in operation. This makes it possible to take corrective action immediately at the
machine, so that the number of inferior parts is kept to a minimum.

ISRA offers the printing industry one of the fastest and most efficient systems available,
designed for one hundred percent surface inspection. It is used to ensure both impeccable sur-

faces of a wide range of materials and at the same time to inspect for flawlessly clean print qual-
ity. In the process, each camera meticulously explores the surface, making nearly 100,000 scans

per second. Even the tiniest imperfection or the most minute deviation in color does not go unnoticed 
by the system.

Regardless of its significance as a production factor, information has become an indispensible part of our work-
sharing society. Even in our personal lives, modern information and communication devices, such as the computer

or our mobile and smart phones, play a important role. The ability to produce high-quality devices efficiently is an essen-
tial part of preserving the environment by saving limited resources and energy.

Information and Communication
Machine Vision the key to more innovations

信息

情報
InformationInformación

Information
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Sustainable growth in focus

ISRA continues to focus on long-term profitable growth. In the upcoming years, revenues are expected to exceed the 
100 million Euros mark. The most important strategic measures that will be used to achieve this objective will include
expanding ISRA’s market share in the industries and markets that are already being supplied today. The focus will be on
acquiring new customers by offering both existing products and more cost-effective ones. An important force that will drive
growth will be innovations for customers, which will increase their return on investment (ROI). The portfolio of products is
constantly being expanded with the addition of new applications and new product variations - also for upstream and
downstream production stages. In addition, ISRA will expand into new regional markets and distribution channels by offer-
ing existing products and solutions in regions which have not yet been exploited. Furthermore, ISRA will make use of its
expertise based on 25 years of proven technology by offering solutions to new customers industries. 

In addition to growing internally, acquisitions play a key role in the growth strategy. In November 2009, ISRA invested in
the machine vision specialist Vistek, a company located in Istanbul. ISRA is continuing along the lines of this strategy with
yet another acquisition, which will be completed in the very near future. Moreover, at this time, there are many promising
projects in process.

ISRA VISIONAnnual Report 2008/2009
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In order to not only remain profitable but also to improve profitability, ISRA is concentrating on optimizing development
processes and the time-to-market, so that as a result products can be introduced to the market faster. With continued focus
on innovations, the costs of the systems are to be reduced, thereby improving the gross margin. By further taking advan-
tage of the "economies of scale" and by introducing lean production the profitability in the future will increase. 

With an order backlog of approximately 33 million Euros in February 2010, ISRA expects revenues for the fiscal year
2009/2010 to be slightly higher than that of the previous year - as a result of organic growth - and that consequently the
profit margin (EBT margin = earnings before taxes in relation to overall performance) will at least remain stable.

ISRA VISION Annual Report 2008/2009
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Reports und Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports and Consolidated
Financial Statements 
- Group Management Report

- Report of the Supervisory Board

- Corporate Governance Report
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1. Business Situation and Operating Environment
1.1. ISRA is a specialist in intelligent systems for industrial image processing
The ISRA Group develops, produces and markets intelligent systems for industrial image processing (Machine Vision) using application-

specific modular standard software solutions for surface inspection (Surface Vision), robot guidance (Robot Vision) and quality control

(Quality Vision). ISRA has structured itself according to industry sectors in order to maintain a close dialog with the respective industry’s

global players, thus applying itself where it most benefits the customer. The company offers solutions for various process steps. ISRA has

focused on the automotive and general industries in the area of industrial automation, and on the glass, display glass, solar industry, plas-

tics, films, non-wovens, print, printed electronics, paper, specialty paper and metal markets in the area of surface inspection. 

1.2. The ISRA Vision Group is geared towards the markets
The ISRA Vision Group is divided into two business divisions. In the 2008/2009 financial year, the Industrial Automation business division

includes the Automotive and General Industries Units. The Surface Vision business division comprises the Glass, Solar Industries, Display

Glass, Plastics, Print, Paper and Metal units.

1.2.1. ISRA VISION AG takes on holding responsibilities
ISRA VISION AG in Darmstadt is taking on the holding functions in the ISRA Group. The central departments of Finance, Research &

Development, Marketing, Purchasing and Electrical Production are all concentrated at this location. The Industrial Automation division, with

the automotive industry as its primary focus, will be managed from Darmstadt. The business unit Print from the Surface Vision division is

also concentrated at this location.

1.2.2. ISRA is a global leader in surface inspection technology 
ISRA is one of the top 5 global players in the Machine Vision sector and the market leader in Europe. In the past year, ISRA has further

expanded it market position – in part through company acquisitions. The process of integrating ISRA’s various acquisitions is for the most

part complete. In many areas of the Surface Inspection sector, ISRA ranks among the world’s leading providers. 

ISRA VISION PARSYTEC AG in Aachen is focused on the metal and paper industry. This is where innovative sector solutions are developed,

enhanced and marketed. The new software architecture for the “Enterprise Production Decision Intelligence” will likewise be developed in

Aachen and marketed from there. The EPROMI architecture with its EXPERT5i modules will help optimize management decisions by

enabling production management to exercise direct control over the production hall.

Mainz-based Metronom Automation GmbH (Metronom) is specialized in the areas of quality measurement technology for car body con-

struction in the automotive industry and for general industrial image processing. With its control and automation of measurement proce-

dures, Metronom has earned itself a solid market position.

1.2.3. Concentration of the Surface Vision business in Herten
The Surface Inspection business has been concentrated into ISRA SURFACE VISION GmbH, Herten. Sales, sector-specific development,

engineering and a part of production are all based here. The markets for the Glass, Display Glass, Plastics, Specialty Paper, Bank Note

Inspection and Laser Scanner business units are all supervised from Herten.

ISRA VISION LASOR GmbH, Oerlinghausen (Germany) is where the final, mechanical integration into production of several Surface Vision

systems is concentrated. Another field of activity at this location is basic development of software (shared with Darmstadt) for all Surface

Vision systems.  

1.2.4. ISRA subsidiaries and branch in North America, South America and the UK
ISRA VISION SYSTEMS, INC., of Lansing (Michigan), USA, runs the entire North American automotive business of the Industrial Automation

division. All Surface Vision activities in America were brought together under one roof at ISRA SURFACE VISION INC., of Duluth, GA, USA.

Also successfully integrated into this operation was ISRA VISION Parsytec Inc., Chicago, IL, USA. The branch location in Sao Paulo, Brazil,

meanwhile, services the South American market.

1.2.5. Expansion in Asia
ISRA VISION (Shanghai) Co. LTD, Shanghai, China, is the production headquarters for the entire Asian market, especially the fast-growing

Chinese market. Activities at this location are currently focused on the Surface Vision division. 

ISRA VISION, Taiwan – Activities in the Display Glass sector (for flat screens) were substantially expanded with the establishment of a busi-

ness presence in Taiwan. The sales and engineering team supervises this business unit’s activities in Taiwan, Korea, Japan and China. The

representative office in Hong Kong is attached organizationally to ISRA VISION Taiwan. Activities in Mumbai, India were launched with the

establishment of ISRA VISION INDIA Private Limited.  

Through ISRA VISION PARSYTEC, the ISRA Group has greatly augmented its market position in Asia, thanks to a sales team that is well

established in the Japanese and Korean markets. Parsytec Asia Pacific Co., Ltd. in Korea and Parsytec Japan Co., Ltd. in Japan are sales

companies for surface solutions from ISRA.
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1.3. Machine Vision is a key technology
Machine Vision technology constitutes a key technology in the area of automation, production control and fully automated quality assurance.

The Machine Vision market is characterized by a continually increasing degree of automation in industrial production, along with continu-

ous, fully automatic optimization of productivity and production quality. 

The competitive environment is characterized by fragmentary distribution since there are many suppliers with a relatively small share of the

market. In Europe and the US, there are only a few large companies with revenue in excess of 10 million Euros and more than 100 employ-

ees. The majority of companies are smaller niche-suppliers operating mainly locally, with few employees. Larger providers – such as ISRA

– focus on highly specialized system solutions and modular standard components for sectors and markets whose economic cycles remain

largely unaffected by global economic factors. 

1.4. Economic output slumps worldwide in 2009   
The financial/economic crisis has forced companies all over the world to defer their investments. Despite the quick response of nearly all

governments and central banks in the form of massive stimulus programs and monetary easing, the global economy remains mired in an

unprecedented slump. According to analysts at Commerzbank, worldwide gross domestic product (GDP) likely fell by 0.4 percent in 2009.

Broken down by region, the decline, the decline apparently totaled about 3.1 percent in industrialized countries, 2.5 percent in the US, 3.8

percent in the Euro zone and 5.5 percent in Japan. In Central/Eastern Europe and Turkey, GDP sank by 5.5 percent. The Russian Federation

was especially hard hit, with a minus of about 7.5 percent. Asia was the only region able to sustain its economic growth. Excluding the

Japanese and Chinese economies, Asian GDP rose by a total of 2.2 percent. China, for its part, recorded whopping growth of 8.0 percent.

1.5. Notable decrease in sales in the German Machine Vision industry 
Starting in Q4 2008, the German image processing industry saw a notable decline in order volume, due to the difficult situation in key cus-

tomer segments. In the first four months of 2009, industrial image processing sales in Germany were already more than 20 percent below

the same period in the previous year. According to estimates of German Engineering Association (VDMA), industrial image processing sales

in 2009 are expected to decline by a total of 30 percent to 845 million Euros. This would correspond to the volume attained back in 2003.

Meanwhile, the European Machine Vision Association estimates that Machine Vision sales in 2009 will retreat by 22 percent in Europe, 35

percent in North America, and 35 percent in Japan. 

1.6. Corporate governance through value-oriented management
The company’s most important performance indicators stem from the consolidated total operating revenue EBITDA/EBIT statement. This

provides a view of the Company’s efficiency and profitability that is relevant to the industry. The most important indicators are the gross mar-

gin (gross profit to total output), the EBITDA, the EBT and the EBT margin (EBT to total output) (see table).

1.7. The great importance of ISRA’s financial management 
Our financial management’s top priority is to safeguard the Company’s liquidity at all times. The liquidity reserves are always managed in a

way that ensures that payment obligations can be met on time. The group is basically financed centrally through the parent company in

Darmstadt, ISRA VISION AG. The liquidity is safeguarded through in-depth financial planning. The operational business is financed from

cash flow and the available liquid funds. 

ISRA aims to continually develop and optimize its financial management. These optimization efforts are particularly focused on reducing

ISRA’s working capital.

2. The profit, financial and assets situation
2.1. ISRA achieves robust performance
In financial year 2008/2009, ISRA was able to be in contrast to the negative trend in much of the industry with robust sales and profit per-

formance. The following breakdown of key operating figures is based on the consolidated total operating revenue EBITDA/EBIT statement

(see table). In financial year 2008/2009, ISRA booked consolidated sales of 58.2 million Euros (previous year: 68.3 million Euros). Capitalized

work fell by 4 percent to 7.7 million Euros (previous year: 8.0 million Euros), a significantly smaller proportional decline than the one in sales.

Total output reached 65.9 million Euros (previous year: 76.3 million Euros). The gross profit margin remained steady. As in the previous finan-

cial year, the gross profit margin was 58 percent of total output. Based on the Cost of Sales method, on the other hand, the gross profit mar-

gin (sales minus production costs) amounted to 52 percent. Thanks to the timely implementation of cost-saving/efficiency-boosting meas-

ures, profit margins remained within the target ranges forecast by the Executive Board. The EBITDA margin was 23 percent of total output

(previous year: 24 percent), while the EBIT margin was 14 percent of total output (previous year: 17 percent), and the EBT margin was 13

percent of total output (previous year: 15 percent). Based on the IFRS Cost of Sales method, the EBIT margin came in at 16 percent (pre-

vious year: 19 percent), while the EBT margin came in at 14 percent (previous year: 17 percent). The net operating margin (net profit after

minority interests) remained steady at exactly the previous year’s level: 11 percent of sales. 

Gross profit (total output minus production costs) decreased to 38.1 million Euros (previous year: 44.3 million Euros). Because production

costs (material plus personnel costs) were reduced by 4.2 million to 27.8 million Euros (previous year: 32.0 million Euros), the gross profit

margin remained stable at 58 percent. Material costs decreased by 14 percent to 14.1 million Euros (previous year: 16.5 million Euros).

Production-personnel costs decreased by 12 percent to 13.7 million Euros (previous year: 15.6 million Euros).
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Consolidated total operating revenue EBITDA/EBIT statement  

More than 20 new solutions to be implemented over the next 2 years
ISRA has used the crisis as an opportunity to push innovation and to optimize processes as well as products. Over the next two years, the

company intends to implement more than 20 new solutions for customers. Thus, ISRA has continued to invest generously in R&D, while

nonetheless managing to reduce investment expenditure by 6 percent to 10.2 million Euros (previous year: 10.8 million Euros). Of these

expenditures, 7.7 million Euros were invested in developing new products that were soon to be launched on the market (previous year: 8.0

million Euros). These amounts were capitalized in accordance with IAS 38. At the same time, 3.8 million Euros (previous year: 3.4 million

Euros) were written off for capitalized developments from previous years and from the year under review. Other depreciation and amortiza-

tion for software and licenses amounted to 1.6 million Euros (previous year: 1.7 million Euros). Application-oriented developments that can

be brought onto the market quickly are the current focus of the R&D strategy, the reduction of the time-to-market being a decisive control

variable. 

Sales, administration and marketing costs
ISRA reduced sales and administration expenses (without depreciation and amortization) by 9 percent to 13.7 million Euros (previous year:

15.1 million Euros). In Asia, especially in India and China, economic output continued to grow despite the ongoing financial/economic cri-

sis. Thus, ISRA has further intensified its sales and marketing efforts in the region. Nonetheless, sales and marketing expenses were reduced

by 7 percent to 10.0 million Euros (previous year: 10.8 million Euros). Efficiency increases and process optimization lead to a reduction of

administrative costs by 15 percent to 3.7 million Euros (previous year: 4.3 million Euros). EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Taxes,

Depreciation and Amortization) reached 15.2 million Euros (previous year: 18.6 million Euros). Depreciation and amortization increased by

4 percent to 5.9 million Euros (previous year: 5.7 million Euros). Depreciation and amortization of capitalized developments accounted for

3.8 million Euros of the aforementioned figure (previous year: 3.4 million Euros). 

Margins well within the target range
EBIT (Earnings before Interest and Taxes) reached 9.3 million Euros (previous year: 12.9 million Euros). Loan repayments and low interest

rates contributed significantly to the improvement in the financial result to -1.0 million Euros (previous year: -1.6 million Euros). EBT (Earnings

before Taxes) reached 8.3 million Euros (previous year: 11.3 million Euros). The EBT margin reached 13 percent in relation to total output

(previous year: 15 percent), and 14 percent in relation to revenue (previous year: 17 percent). Tax charges decreased by 45 percent to 1.8

million Euros (previous year: 3.3 million Euros). In financial year 2008/2009, ISRA achieved an annual net profit after minority interests of

6.5 million Euros (previous year: 7.6 million Euros). This corresponds to earnings of 1.52 Euros per share (previous year: 1.76 Euros), given

a total of 4,258,140 outstanding shares (previous year: 4,317,050). 

Growth in individual segments and markets
The largest division, Surface Vision, is a sector in which ISRA is one of the world’s leading providers. In financial year 2008/2009, ISRA

achieved total output of 52.9 million Euros in this segment (previous year: 58.3 million Euros). EBIT reached 7.9 million Euros (previous year:

Group Management Report

Oct. 1, 2008 to Oct. 1, 2007 to
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 in percent Sept. 30, 2008 in percent

Net sales 58,153 88 % 68,286 89 %

Capitalized work 7,736 12 % 8,033 11 %

Total output 65,889 100 % 76,319 100 %

Cost of materials 14,139 21 % 16,478 22 %

Personnel expenditure excluding depreciatio 13,690 21 % 15,552 20 %

Production costs excluding depreciation 27,830 42 % 32,031 42 %

Gross profit 38,059 58 % 44,289 58 %

Research and development total 10,187 15 % 10,803 14 %

Sales and marketing costs 10,024 15 % 10,818 14 %

Administration costs 3,688 6 % 4,322 6 %

Sales and administration costs excluding depreciation 13,711 21 % 15,138 20 %

Other operating expenditure/revenue 1,021 2 % 256 0 %

EBITDA 15,182 23 % 18,603 24 %

Depreciation and amortization  5,921 9 % 5,666 7 %

Total costs 29,819 45 % 31,608 41 %

EBIT 9,261 14 % 12,937 17 %

Financial result -1,000 -2 % -1,601 -2 %

EBT 8,261 13 % 11,336 15 %

Taxes 1,844 3 % 3,346 4 %

Net profit 6,418 10 % 7,990 10 %

Minority interests -49 0 % 409 1 %

Net profit after minority interests 6,466 10 % 7,581 10 %
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9.9 million Euros). The Industrial Automation division, on the other hand, saw its total output decline to 12.9 million Euros (previous year:

18.0 million Euros). EBIT decreased to 1.3 million Euros (previous year: 3.0 million Euros). The strongest growth impulse came from the

Glass business unit, which benefited from particularly strong growth in Asia. There was also sales growth in the Specialty Paper and Print

units.

2.2. Clear improvement in operative cash flow
The favorable profit situation, coupled with a sustained reduction in outstanding receivables (thanks to continued improvement in manage-

ment of finances and receivables) made a key contribution to boosting the operative cash flow by 10 million to 16.4 million Euros (previous

year: 6.4 million Euros).  Liquid assets declined by 5.4 million to 7.2 million Euros (previous year: 9.7 million Euros). This was in the wake

of investments of 10.8 million Euros (previous year: 22.5 million Euros), as well as dividend payouts, interest payments and significant repay-

ment of a significant portion of bank liabilities totaling 10.8 million Euros (previous year: + 6.3 million Euros). Cash in the amount of 1.7 mil-

lion Euros was deposited as security.

2.3. Solid financing at a 57 percent equity ratio 
In financial year 2008/2009, ISRA’s consolidated balance sheet total declined by 7.9 million to 141.8 million Euros (previous year: 149.7 mil-

lion Euros). Liquid assets decreased to 7.2 million Euros (previous year: 12.5 million Euros), mainly due to a reduction of bank liabilities. This

means that cash assets now make up just under 5 percent of total assets (previous year: 8 percent). Receivables from goods and services

supplied decreased by 0.7 million Euros to 37.1 million Euros (previous year: 37.8 million Euros). Receivables from unfinished orders

amounted to 20.2 million Euros (previous year: 17.3 million Euros), based on the “percentage-of-completion” method. 

Current assets dropped to a portion of 44 percent of total assets (previous year: 49 percent). At 56 percent (previous year: 51 percent) of

total assets, long-term fixed assets reached 79.5 million Euros (previous year: 76.5 million Euros). Company goodwill declined, despite addi-

tional acquisitions, by 1.1 million to 37.6 million Euros (previous year: 38.7 million Euros). This was due to the formation of deferred tax assets

on losses brought forward (losses on the books of the Parsytec Group at the time of its acquisition). Given that Management’s planning is

based on the assumption of an improving economic climate, no impairment of Company goodwill was recognized.

The tax loss carryforwards for the entire ISRA Group totaled 18.5 million Euros as of September 30, 2009 (previous year: 20.9 million Euros).

Deferred tax assets were formed for 13.2 million Euros of these loss carryforwards (previous year: 9.8 million Euros). 

Thanks to the favorable profit situation, equity capital increased to 81.2 million Euros (previous year: 75.7 million Euros). The equity capital

ratio improved by 6 percentage points to 57 percent (previous year: 51 percent). 

Short-term loans in an amount of 9.2 million Euros were converted into long-term loans, giving the Company the most flexible repayment

options possible. Since the agreed interest rate is based on the EURIBOR, the Company was able to benefit from the declining EURIBOR.

The Company has the option to hedge the interest rate at any time. As of the end of the financial year, ISRA had access to additional financ-

ing of over 15 million Euros. 

Short-term liabilities dropped from 35.1 million Euros in the previous year to 18.9 million Euros. Short-term bank liabilities decreased by 11.3

million Euros to 2.2 million Euros (previous year: 13.5 million Euros). Other liabilities decreased by 2.7 million Euros to 8.2 million Euros (pre-

vious year: 10.9 million Euros). 

Of the long-term liabilities, bank liabilities increased to 26.9 million Euros (previous year: 24.9 million Euros). There is also a liability of 3.9

million Euros associated with the ERP Innovation Program of the Reconstruction Loan Corporation (Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau).

3. Non-financial performance indicators 
The success of the ISRA Group depends to a considerable degree on its employees. The company therefore continues to invest in Human

Resource Management in order to strategically strengthen and expand its future and succession planning in the coming years. ISRA attach-

es great importance to well-trained, educated employees and to their qualifications and abilities. This can be seen in the number of employ-

ees with academic degrees. The ISRA Academy is a key component of the company’s offer of continuing training for its employees. Based

on the recommendations of Management, external trainers are deployed to implement appropriate measures for the ongoing qualification

of the workforce. The “competence offensive” launched by the company is intended to enhance the skills of individual employees in line

with their professional responsibilities. After successfully completing the specialized training (e.g. in project management, oral communica-

tion, or optimal interfacing with customers), the employee receives a certificate. 

Mature, long-lasting relationships with key customers, along with top-quality products and professional project management, are a result of

an intensive, strategic key-account management.

4. Employees
In the 2008/2009 financial year, the ISRA Group employed an average of 361 people worldwide (previous year: 372). 364 people were

employed as of September 30, 2009. The majority of these work in Germany at the locations in Darmstadt (25 percent), Aachen (13 per-

cent), Karlsruhe (4 percent), Herten (24 percent), Oerlinghausen (9 percent) and Mainz (3 percent). 10 percent of the employees work in the

USA and 9 percent in Asia. Another 3 percent work in London and Brazil. Of the staff employed worldwide as of September 30, 2009, 45

percent work in production and engineering and approximately 20 percent in research and development. Another 17 percent of ISRA

employees work in sales and marketing and 18 percent in administration.  

5. Remuneration Report  
The structure of the remuneration system for the Executive Board is determined by the Supervisory Board. Criteria used to assess appro-

priateness of the remuneration include the tasks of the respective Executive Board member, their personal performance, the performance
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of the entire Executive Board, as well as the Company's economic position, success and future prospects – all in comparison to other peo-

ple in equivalent positions. The remuneration of Executive Board members comprises short-term components as well as long-term incen-

tives. The non-performance-based components involve fixed remuneration, payments in kind and other types of benefits. The short-term

components comprise performance-based and non-performance-based elements. The non-performance-oriented, fixed base remuneration

is paid monthly as a salary and is reviewed on a yearly basis. Executive Board members also receive other benefits, such as allowances

for a private pension plan, health insurance and long-term care insurance. They also receive benefits in kind that primarily involve the use

of a company car. Payments to the members of the Executive Board include performance-based, variable components that may, in individ-

ual cases, total up to 30 percent of base pay. These payments are revised annually by the Supervisory Board on basis of objectives. 

As a publicly traded company, ISRA VISION AG has the singular opportunity to have its employees and the Executive Board participate

directly in its success via a stock option program, a variable element of their remuneration in the form of a long-term incentive. Options may

only be exercised after a blocking period has expired. According to the stock option program, options can be exercised for either cash or

shares. However, ISRA VISION AG’s internal practice tends towards offering cash for stock options. An option holder’s options expire if the

option holder has terminated the employment relationship with the Company, or if he is no longer a member of a statutory body of ISRA

VISION AG or of a Group company. Nonetheless, options remain in force unchanged if the employment relationship ends due to the employ-

ee’s retirement or due to professional disability. Options cannot be inherited or transferred. In addition, option rights expire 5 years after the

day they are issued. 

Options may only be exercised if at least one of the two predefined targets for success has been reached. These are based on the shares

performance in relation to purchase price and time of exercise. The subscription price for a share is given by the arithmetic average of the

closing prices in XETRA trading for the share in the period between the 15th and 5th trading day (before the option is issued), multiplied by

a factor of 1.1.  

The Supervisory Board is authorized to define the further details of the subscription conditions and of the issue and structure of the options

for the Executive Board. In addition, the Supervisory Board is authorized to transfer on behalf of the Executive Board the shares needed to

fulfill the option rights by issuing acquired own shares or by issuing new shares through a capital increase. 

The members of the Supervisory Board receive adequate remuneration for their membership on the Supervisory Board every full financial

year; this remuneration is determined by the General Meeting and is payable after the end of the financial year. The Chairman receives dou-

ble the amount; the vice chairman receives 1.5 times the amount. Supervisory Board members who have not belonged to the Board for a

full financial year are remunerated based on the duration of their membership on the Supervisory Board. 

The members of the Supervisory Board will be reimbursed for all expenses and for the value-added tax that they must pay on their remu-

neration and expenses.

6. Risks and opportunities for the company’s future development
A commercial approach goes hand-in-hand with risks. A company’s success is characterized by successful opportunities exceeding the

downside risks in all important decisions. To compare risks against opportunities, ISRA uses a qualified risk management system. Using this

risk management system, all important risks are made visible both retrospectively and prospectively. The system is build on an effective

management information system, in particular the internal reporting structure. The system is continually readjusted in line with the insights

gained from previous years and the new requirements of the German Stock Companies Act (Aktiengesetz) and the German Corporate

Governance Code. The risk management system is especially aimed at recognizing risk early on, controlling it and monitoring it.

ISRA endeavors to realize risks quickly. Owing to the globalization of the company and the growing number of locations, it is increasingly

important to promptly procure, distribute and process detailed information.

ISRA is exposed to the general legal and economic risks in the countries where the group companies operate. In addition to this, the group’s

net sales and profit situation may also be significantly influenced by the risks described below. These are the risks that have been identified

until now. This does not preclude the existence of other risks not yet realized by the management, nor does it preclude the possibility of

these risks being under-estimated as negligible. Sufficient provisions were made for all likely risks. There have not been any risks identified

which threaten the existence of the company.

Financial crisis: preventive measures
It is still too soon to determine whether the worst of the financial/economic crisis is over. One possible scenario for the current financial year

would be a continued slowdown or stagnation of the market. Some projects and delivery deadlines may be postponed. Decisions for new

investments may be delayed, and some key customers may temporarily halt their investment activities. Management is expecting the major-

ity of the key customers’ budget decisions for the current financial year to be firmed up in January/February 2010.

Because of the current trend, the company has modified its risk management system to suit current needs and has increased its sensitivi-

ty in all sectors. Reporting intervals have been significantly shortened already in the previous year to allow risks to be detected early on. This

is why quarterly reports have been shortened to a monthly cycle, and monthly reports to a bi-weekly interval. These stringent controls will

be kept in place in the current financial year. They pertain to all of the company’s key performance indicators such as revenue forecasts,

liquidity planning, as well as receivables and production capacity planning. Thus, customers and markets are being monitored with much

closer scrutiny. New customers in particular will be subject to a stricter credit check. Ongoing measures to boost productivity and efficien-

cies will be continued. To guarantee the company’s ability to pay and be financially flexible, a liquidity reserve in the form of a line of cred-

it and cash is being held in reserve. As of September 30, 2009, ISRA had access to lines of credit totaling more than 15 million Euros. The

use of financial instruments is regulated by internal guidelines in the context of the risk-management. These guidelines have the following

goals: setting limits for underlying transactions; defining authorization procedures; excluding the use of derivatives for speculative purpos-

es; minimizing credit risks; regulating internal reporting and segregation of functions. Hedging transactions are undertaken exclusively via
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the Group’s central finance department for the purposes of hedging against fluctuations in market interest rates, specifically insofar as they

affect the company’s variable interest bank loans. These hedging transactions are subject to stringent internal controls. In managing inter-

est-rate risk, we limit ourselves to instruments commonly used on the market. Moreover, we employ such instruments exclusively to hedge

our existing loans, and never for speculative purposes. Our interest-rate swap transactions generate payment obligations based on a con-

tractually agreed, fixed rate of interest. This is offset on the plus side by receipt of a variable interest rate.  

If the economic slump should continue, this could of course prolong the negative impact on the business climate for our customers and on

the demand for our products. This could result in commensurate risks to our revenue and profits. The management has therefore simulat-

ed various risk scenarios to be prepared for all eventualities. Simulations have been performed, especially with regard to delays/drops in

orders, bad debts and overdue incoming payments. 

Other risks and opportunities for the company’s future development
As a rule, ISRA bills customers in Euros. Only in the US are quotations made both in the local currency and in Euros. The Management reg-

ularly adjusts the sales calculations to changes in the exchange rates. This prevents currency-based risks. This leaves the risk of ISRA's

competitive edge over local suppliers being dulled in the wake of a falling dollar. This risk is limited, however, because the administrative

and sales costs in the USA are also in dollars.

ISRA’s core technology is Machine Vision technology for industry. The basis of this technology is the combination of specialized basic and

application technology knowledge from the fields of robotics and vision, plus process knowledge, with software technology in marketable

standard hardware and software components. Consequently, protecting intellectual property rights – especially where know-how and soft-

ware are concerned – is particularly important to ISRA. These technologies are characterized by continuous enhancement. ISRA’s success

depends on its capability to promptly develop, acquire and bring onto the market new or improved products that conform to changes in

technology and meet customer demands.

ISRA’s success so far shows that the company is characterized by a high level of innovation. In the last few years, ISRA has demonstrated

its ability to put the necessary investment in a highly focused research and development, to recognize risks promptly and start innovation

measures at a very early stage.

The global Machine Vision market is highly fragmented. ISRA is therefore competing here with a variety of suppliers – a few large ones and

many smaller ones. In order to maintain its success in the future as well, ISRA continues to work nonstop on raising the barrier for com-

petitors looking to enter the market – both in R&D and in the fields of customer relationships and customer satisfaction. To achieve this, the

Company will in future invest even more, particularly in sales and customer support.

ISRA counteracts the dependency on economic fluctuations by diversifying in various industries in different countries. Consequently, ISRA

will continue to concentrate on products that guarantee the customer a high ROI (Return On Investment) and therefore bring about a fast

decision to invest. 

In all areas of its business, ISRA has customer relationships to many large enterprises. These companies are chiefly multinationals from the

automotive, glass, paper, print, plastics, metal and automation industries. None of these companies contributes more than 10 percent of

ISRA’s revenue. Because ISRA products guarantee a high ROI and ensure a competitive edge for customers (who are themselves con-

stantly in cost competition), these customers in turn share a symbiotic relationship with ISRA. Nevertheless, it remains ISRA’s constant objec-

tive to continue increasing its number of customers through the “dual multi-segment strategy”. Using new products, smaller, regionally based

companies will also be acquired as customers in the relevant target markets.

The majority of ISRA customers show a high degree of credit worthiness. Splitting the overall receivable into smaller amounts (e.g. payable

prior to work being conducted, during system construction and after initialization) works against a loss of receivables. In the 2008/2009

financial year, the level of bad debt was less than one percent of the revenue and thus in line with the average of the past few years. 

The company intends to continue its global expansion, not just through internal growth, but also by means of strategic alliances, consoli-

dations and the acquisition of companies or parts of companies. With the acquisitions of the past few years, ISRA has demonstrated its abil-

ity to also integrate large companies successfully, thus making a considerable contribution to the growth of both revenue and profit. The

acquisitions made in previous years have been financed through a long-term loan at a variable interest rate. ISRA bears the risk of changes

in the interest rate. Because of the current development in the capital markets and because of the expected cash flow, Management con-

siders this type of financing to be optimal at this time. There is, however, still the possibility that the acquired companies will not immediately

earn back the paid interest through their operative business. At this time, the management estimates the probability to be minimal.

Management is working to counteract the risks involved in project business, such as fixed prices for a defined scope of services and a fixed

completion date, through intensive and rigorous controlling of proposals and project costs. In the process, the focus will be on monitoring

and managing the costs of project completion (cost to complete).

To date, no major liability claims due to defective products or sub-standard services have been made against the companies of the ISRA

Group. Despite taking the utmost care, we cannot exclude the possibility of this happening in the future. 

7. Important events after the balance sheet date
In November 2009, ISRA acquired a 24-percent minority interest in the Turkish company VISTEK (Vistek Yapay Görme ve Otomasyon Sanayi

ç ve Dı  Ticaret Anonim irketi). ISRA intends to acquire 100 percent of VISTEK over the next three to four years on the basis of an earn-

out model. With its investment in this Istanbul-based Machine-Vision specialist, ISRA hopes to create additional growth opportunities through

increased penetration of the market in Turkey as well as across the Middle East and Central Asia. The ISRA team already working in Turkey

will be integrated into VISTEK, with the ISRA Sales and Marketing Manager assuming responsibility for joint sales efforts. The additional appli-

cation know-how gained from this acquisition will give ISRA access to customers in entirely new industries. 
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8. Forecast report
8.1. The global economy: a hard slog out of the crisis
“The worldwide recession has been overcome, but its consequences will linger for a long time to come.” This is the conclusion presented

in the financial daily Handelsblatt in mid-December 2009 on the basis of the latest surveys conducted by Germany’s leading economic

research institutes. Thus, the consensus seems to be that the way out of the recession will continue to be a difficult one. Practically unani-

mously, economic analysts have made a slight upward revision to the fall forecast of two months ago. In 2010, they expect German output

to growth by 1.2 to 2 percent, and again by the same amount in 2011. This implies that at least half of the growth lost during the recession

can be recouped in two years. Thus, 2011 GDP will be about as high as in 2007. 

It will be some time before we see another strong uptrend, however, according to analysts from the Kieler Institut für Wirtschaftsforschung

(IfW). In these six winter months, total production growth could actually prove lower than in the preceding six months. After that, the econo-

my should finally begin to pick up speed. Looking at the international economy, the IfW economists forecast a two-track recovery: While pro-

duction in the emerging economies is likely to grow at a healthy clip, the industrialized countries should continue to sputter along, in the

wake of the wrenching adjustments occasioned by the financial crisis. The export-dependent economies of Japan and Germany, meanwhile,

are likely to face sustained drag effects from decreased foreign demand. Global output, according to the IfW experts, will rise by about 3.6

percent in 2010, while global trade should rise by about 8 percent. 

Commerzbank has published the following growth forecasts for 2010: 2 percent in the industrialized countries, 2.5 percent in the US, 1.5

percent in the Euro zone, 2.0 percent in Japan, 2.9 percent in Latin America, 1.8 percent in the Central/Eastern Europe (including Turkey).

The clear driver of the recovery will be Asia, with GDP expected to grow by 5.0 percent across the region (excluding China and Japan). In

China, growth is projected at a whopping 8.5 percent.

Looking at the German image processing industry in 2010, the German Engineering Association (VDMA) is forecasting a slow return to

growth. According to the association’s estimates, Machine Vision companies will be able to boost their sales by roughly 5 percent to some

890 million Euros. A flash survey of firms in the industry conducted by VDMA in October 2009 paints an encouraging picture: Only about

10 percent of the companies surveyed expected their sales to decline, while 20 percent expected their 2010 business to match the previ-

ous year’s levels. Furthermore, more than half of the Machine Vision companies surveyed expected to see a slight improvement, while 20

percent even looked forward to strong sales growth. 

8.2. ISRA is focusing on opportunities in the crisis 
With a further marketing and innovation offensive in financial year 2009/2010, ISRA is preparing the ground for a return to long-term growth.

Thus, Management plans to introduce more than 20 new solutions for customers over the next two years. ISRA customers are usually glob-

al market leaders in their respective industries. They generally deploy ISRA products and solutions at all their international production loca-

tions, after having tested them successfully. ISRA has the opportunity to expand its business with these key customers by introducing new

products for upstream and/or downstream phases of the production cycle. Thus, ISRA consistently strives to boost its market share with

existing customers through new or enhanced technologies. Moreover, the company is intent on acquiring new customers in the industries

it serves, while also parlaying its know-how into solutions for entirely new industries. In this context, the most positive growth trend is clear-

ly the one in China, where ISRA is committed to further expanding its marketing efforts.

ISRA is keeping its focus on growth. In the coming years, the target will be to boost sales above the 100-million-Euro mark. One compo-

nent of this expansion strategy is external growth. At present, Management is engaged in promising negotiations with a number of compa-

nies, so that another acquisition is possible within the first six months of financial year 2009/2010. The company’s minority interests in Vistek,

a spin-off of Sabanci University, is intended to give ISRA additional growth opportunities through improved market penetration in Turkey as

well as across the Middle East and Central Asia. By providing expanded on-site service and support, ISRA will be able to boost customer

value in the region while also optimizing its cost structure. In addition, ISRA will acquire additional application know-how that it will give it

access to customers in new industries. 

ISRA has used the worldwide financial/economic crisis to improve its market position by launching a wide range of projects to reduce costs,

boost productivity and efficiency, and provide ongoing training for employees. With an order backlog of over 30 million Euros and tendered

bids worth several hundred million Euros, ISRA fully intends to return to its long-term path of profitable internal and external growth. As things

stand, Management sees encouraging first signs of a re-invigoration of order volume, for example in the steel industry. This could be an

indication that the recession has already bottomed out. Assuming investment in key industry picks up again and postponed projects are

realized, ISRA expects to see renewed growth in the second half of financial year 2009/2010. A detailed forecast would be premature, how-

ever, given the many variables involved. January/February is when most customers will be making their budget decisions: Based on indi-

cations thus far, cautious optimism is in order. ISRA will be releasing a more specific forecast for financial year 2009/2010 in early February.

Thus, it is too early to make predictions about financial year 2010/2011.

9. Supplementary information pursuant to § 315 Para. 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
As of the balance sheet date, the company’s share capital totaled 4,381,240 Euros. It is divided into 4,381,240 shares of registered to hold-

ers with a nominal of 1 Euro. Each share conveys one vote. It is forbidden to securitize the shares.

EVWB GmbH & Co. KG, headquartered in Darmstadt, (majority shareholder and CEO Enis Ersü) holds a share in excess of 10 percent of

ISRA VISION AG.

The Supervisory Board consists of six members. Mr. Enis Ersü, Darmstadt, is entitled to depute a member of the Supervisory Board as long

as he holds his portion of the company’s share capital. The remaining members are selected by the General Meeting.

Pursuant to §§ 84, 85 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) in conjunction with § 6 of the company’s Articles of Association, the

Executive Board is appointed and dismissed by the Supervisory Board. According to § 19 of the Articles of Association, changes to the

Group Management Report
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Articles of Association must be ratified at the annual General Meeting through a simple majority of the base capital entitled to vote that is

represented at the adoption of the resolution. According to § 179 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG), changes to the Articles of

Association that pertain to the objective of the company must be ratified at the annual General Meeting through at least a three-fourths major-

ity of the base capital entitled to vote that is represented at the adoption of the resolution. Pursuant to § 15 of the Articles of Association, the

Supervisory Board of the company is furthermore only authorized to make modifications to the Company’s Articles of Association that con-

cern their version.

The General Meeting held on March 20, 2007 resolved an amendment to the Articles of Association. This amendment authorizes the

Executive Board to increase the company’s share capital until March 19, 2012 once only or on multiple occasions by issuing new bearer

held no-par value shares against cash or non-cash contributions, up to a maximum amount of 2,168,970.00 Euros (authorized capital). The

Executive Board is authorized, with the agreement of the Supervisory Board, to exclude the statutory subscription rights of shareholders 

• for residual amounts, 

• to secure shares in return for contributions of fixed assets, in particular in the context of mergers with other companies or the purchase of

other companies, parts of companies or of an interest in other companies,

• if the capital increase takes place by means of contribution in cash and the issued value is not, at the time of the final determination of the

issued value by the Executive Board, significantly less than the share price of the shares of a similar nature and scope which are already

quoted on the stock markets, when judged in terms of the provisions of § 203 Paragraphs 1 and 2 and § 186 Paragraph 3, Sentence 4 of

the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) and the amount of the base capital attributable to the shares issued under exclusion of the

statutory subscription rights does not exceed 433,794.00 Euros and 10 percent of the recorded base capital at the time of the issue of the

new shares. Disposals of shares must be charged against this 10 percent limitation of base capital if they occur due to authorization under

shareholder exception from subscription as per § 71 Paragraph 1 Clause 8 (German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) in connection with §

186 Paragraph 3 Clause 4 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG). In addition, shares issued to service convertible or warrant bonds

have to be offset against the 10 percent limitation of base capital if the bonds were issued with the exclusion of subscription rights due to

an authorization applicable at the moment or an authorization acting on its behalf, as found in § 186 Paragraph 3 Clause 4 of the German

Stock Corporation Law (AktG).

On the basis of a resolution passed by the General Meeting on March 28, 2006, ISRA VISION AG increased its share capital by 250,000.00

Euros by issuing up to 250,000 no-par bearer shares to implement an employee equity compensation plan (conditional capital).

On the basis of a resolution passed by the General Meeting on March 24, 2009, base capital has been increased by up to 1,940,620.00

Euros of no-par value bearer shares (conditional capital II). The conditional capital increase may only be carried out to the extent that the

holder of convertible or warrant bonds, issued on the basis of the authorization given to the Executive Board by the Annual General Meeting

on March 24, 2009, makes use of this conversion or warrant right, or to the extent that the holders, who are obliged to make the conversion

fulfill their obligation to undertake the conversion.

Based on the decision of the General Meeting held on March 24, 2009, the Executive Board of ISRA VISION AG has been authorized to

acquire its own shares until September 23, 2010, complying with the principle of equal treatment (§ 53a of the German Stock Corporation

Law (AktG)). They are authorized to acquire up to 438,124 shares of the company, corresponding to ten percent of the current share capi-

tal, under the provision that the shares which are purchased in accordance with this authorization, when added to the other shares in the

company which the company has already purchased and still possesses, do not represent more than ten percent of the base capital of the

company. This authorization may be implemented in full or in parts. Purchases may be undertaken within the period covered by the author-

ization up to the point where the maximum purchase volume has been reached by partial purchases on various purchasing dates. Purchases

may also be undertaken by subsidiary enterprises of the company in the context of § 17 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) or

on its/their behalf by third parties.

Darmstadt, January 18, 2010

The Executive Board
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As in previous years, the Supervisory Board exercised its legal and statutory responsibilities in the 2008/2009 financial year by monitoring

the management of the ISRA VISION group and by advising the Executive Board. The Supervisory Board participated in a timely and in-

depth manner in all decisions of fundamental or strategic importance. Following thorough consultation, the Supervisory Board cast its vote

whenever necessary. 

The Supervisory Board currently consists of Dr. Ing. h. c. Heribert J. Wiedenhues (Chairman), Dr. Wolfgang Witz (Deputy Chairman), Dr. Erich

W. Georg, Stefan Müller, Falko Schling and Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Dipl.-Ing. Hennig Tolle.

The Executive Board regularly and comprehensively informed the Supervisory Board about business activities, corporate planning and

events of great importance, both verbally and in writing. They also provided thorough explanations whenever the business results deviated

from planning. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board remained in regular contact with the Chairman of the Executive Board. Together they

thoroughly discussed current business developments.

The Supervisory Board convened five meetings by personal attendance in the 2008/2009 financial year. The following topics were deliber-

ated in detail and decided upon:

Meeting of November 24, 2008

The Supervisory Board authorized the agenda for the general meeting on March 24, 2009 and adopted the June 6, 2008 version of the

Declaration of Compliance with the Corporate Governance Codex. Moreover, the Supervisory Board discussed the need for comprehensive

back-planning due to the overall economic situation. A cost-savings/efficiency-boosting program was implemented. The product portfolio of

ISRA VISION AG was discussed in detail.

Meeting of January 26, 2009

The Supervisory Board approved - after the report of the audit commitee - unanimously the annual financial statements for ISRA VISION

AG, including the consolidated financial statements and the Group management report, thus confirming the annual financial statements. The

Supervisory Board decided on a dividend payout of 15 Cents. In addition, the Supervisory Board discussed giving the Executive Board the

authorization to issue convertible bonds. The organization and agenda of the upcoming general meeting was decided upon. The Supervisory

Board adopted strategic measures in areas such as personnel streamlining, investments, dealing with non-operative units, as well the loca-

tions of domestic/foreign offices. Production optimization at the Herten location was discussed as well. 

Meeting of March 24, 2009

It was decided that the Supervisory Board would become involved in sales and marketing activities. In addition, the Executive Board

informed the Supervisory Board with regard to possible company acquisitions.

Meeting of May 18, 2009

The Executive Board gave the Supervisory Board an overview of the 3rd quarter of the 2008/2009 financial year along with a forecast for

the financial year as a whole. The Supervisory Board approved the forecast. The Executive Board also presented financial and IT-related

analyses. The acquisition of Vistek was discussed. The Executive board informed the Supervisory Board about the current situation at the

former Parsytec AG.

Meeting of September 22, 2009

The Supervisory Board discussed in depth the budget for the 2009/2010 financial year and approved it. The Company planning for the

2009/2010 financial year was also presented and approved. The date for the General Meeting was set for March 24, 2010. It was decided

that the Supervisory Board would henceforward receive a monthly overview of key operating data in a short form (rather than quarterly, as

before). The entire Supervisory Board was informed in detail regarding the results of the main committee and meeting.

The Supervisory Board’s deliberations focused on the following: the company’s financial, sales and profit position; the company’s share-

holdings; the company’s risk-management system; international market trends – especially given the global economic crisis – insofar as

they affect the industrial image processing sector; the potential risks and rewards of expanding ISRA’s activities in Asia, East Europe and

South America. The Supervisory Board also dealt with the effects of the German Accounting Modernization Act and the new Corporate

Governance Codex. After satisfying itself that ISRA had complied with the recommendations in the Declaration of Compliance in the finan-

cial year just ended, the Supervisory Board helped to draw up said Declaration. The Executive Board also provided the Supervisory Board

with an additional report on ISRA’s Corporate Governance in a separate section of this annual report. 

The PKF Deutschland GmbH financial auditing company audited the annual financial statements and the management report (prepared by

the Executive Board in accordance with the German Commercial Code (HGB)) for the financial year from October 01, 2008 to September

30, 2009. The Supervisory Board commissioned the audit, as decided at the general meeting on March 24, 2009. The financial auditor has

issued an unqualified audit certification. The consolidated financial statements of ISRA VISION AG were prepared in accordance with § 315a

of the German Commercial Code (HGB), and are based on IFRS international accounting standards. The financial auditor has also grant-

ed an unqualified audit certification for the consolidated financial statements and the group management report.

The audit committee had set the following auditing priorities for financial year 2008/2009 on December 4, 2009 and January 25, 2010: test-

ing for conformity of ISRA VISION AG’s accounting with the principles of the German Commercial Code (HGB); testing for conformity of the

ISRA VISION Group’s accounting with IAS guidelines; testing for consistent application of accounting and valuation methods; auditing inter-

Group settlement transactions; testing for possible value impairment of company shareholdings.

Report of the Supervisory Board

Report of the Supervisory Board
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Reports on the foregoing topics, along with the other audit reports and the financial statement documents, were sent to all Supervisory Board

members in a timely manner. These were discussed in depth by the auditing committee and the Supervisory Board. The auditors took part

in the consultation and reported the essential results from the audits, making themselves available to answer any questions from the audit-

ing committee and the Supervisory Boards. The Supervisory Board addressed the disclosures called for under §§ 289 Paragraph 4 and 315

Paragraph 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB). The Supervisory Board examined the corresponding notes referred to in the man-

agement report.

After examining the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial statements, the management report and the group management

report, the Supervisory Board accepted the results of the audit from the auditor. In accordance with the recommendation from the auditing

committee, the Supervisory Board approved the annual financial statements and the consolidated financial statements at the meeting held

on January 25, 2010. The annual financial statements have thus been confirmed. The Supervisory Board has given its approval to the

Executive Board’s suggestion for the allocation of net profit for the year.

The Supervisory Board extends its thanks to the Executive Board, as well as to all employees of ISRA and its subsidiaries, for their person-

al efforts and successful work in the very difficult 2008/2009 financial year.

Darmstadt, January 25, 2010

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Report of the Supervisory Board
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An essential factor for a company’s success is its management. ISRA has always placed great importance on responsible, value-oriented,

effective corporate governance. This is why ISRA‘s Executive and Supervisory Boards verify (and if necessary, adjust) the implementation of

the Corporate Governance Code on an annual basis, using as a the codex adapted by the government commission as a benchmark. ISRA

is in compliance with the most recent recommendations, with only very few company-specific exceptions.

Responsible governance is oriented towards value enhancement
Pursuant to Paragraph 3.10 of the German Corporate Governance Codex, the Executive and Supervisory Boards report about corporate

governance at ISRA as follows:

ISRA is oriented to the standards of responsible corporate governance directed towards long-term added value. Through open information

and transparent decision structures, the management aims to validate and further encourage the trust of its customers, employees, busi-

ness partners, shareholders and the public. The company communicates information regularly in an open, proactive manner and specific

information relevant to stock prices is reported immediately to the financial community via ad hoc announcements. All obligatory announce-

ments, corporate reports, essential notifications and press releases are promptly published on the ISRA internet home page. This assures

equal dissemination of information to all shareholders. 

The Executive Board manages business transactions responsibly and self-reliantly
At ISRA, good corporate governance means first and foremost constructive, trusting cooperation between the Executive Board and the

Supervisory Board with the goal of corporate governance targeted towards value enhancement. The Executive Board develops the com-

pany’s strategic orientation in conjunction with the Supervisory Board, leading the ISRA Group responsibly and self-reliantly. In writing and

by word of mouth, they regularly report to the Supervisory Board on the business climate, the company’s position, its corporate planning

and its risk situation. The bylaws govern the allocation of rights and duties on the Executive Board and define transactions and procedures

which the Supervisory Board must follow. 

The Supervisory Board monitors and advises the Executive Board
At ISRA, the Supervisory Board does not merely diligently fulfill its function as a supervisory body; it also advises and directs the Executive

Board and its Chairman. To increase efficiency, the Supervisory Board has formed committees. The Bylaws Committee regulates all admin-

istrative and organizational matters. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board reports about this committee’s work in a separate Supervisory

Board report.

Managing risk effectively
Doing business as an entrepreneur means running risks. Effective management of these risks will determine the success of a company.

ISRA’s risk management system ensures that these risks will be handled in a responsible manner. It is especially designed to promptly rec-

ognize, evaluate and manage risks. The system is continuously being enhanced and readjusted to suit the changing circumstances. In the

management report, the Executive Board reports in detail about risks and future trends. 

Appropriate Remuneration 
The members of the Executive and Supervisory Boards are remunerated in appropriate proportion to their tasks and the responsibilities.

Each member of the Supervisory Board will receive a fixed sum for the past 2008/2009 financial year. Supervisory Board members who did

not occupy their position on the board for the whole year will receive remuneration corresponding to the duration of their membership.

Performance-based remuneration of Executive Board members reflects the corporate philosophy on management remuneration within the

entire ISRA Group. Members of the Executive Board and other managers within the Company receive remuneration consisting of both fixed

and variable components. The variable components account for up to 30 percent of base pay. The Executive Board reports in detail on the

remuneration system in the Group management report. 

Shareholding structure
(Shares held by members of the Executive and Supervisory Boards) 

* Mr. Ersü holds the voting rights allocated to him via the following companies which he himself controls: EVWB GmbH& Co. KG, EVWB GmbH. Each of these companies, in turn, holds
at least 3 percent of the voting rights in ISRA VISION AG

Corporate Governance Report
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No. of shares No. of shares
Executive Board as per Sep. 30, 2009 Supervisory Board as per Sep. 30, 2009

E. Ersü 1,103,000* Dr. Ing. h.c. H. Wiedenhues 0

H.-J. Christ 60 Dr. W. Witz 0

W. Rothermel 0 Prof. Dr. H. Tolle 1,200

Dr. J. Giet 0 Stefan Müller 0

Dr. E. W. Georg 0

Falko Schling 0
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Declaration of Compliance as per § 161 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG).
The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of ISRA VISION AG hereby declare, in accordance with § 161 of the German Stock Corporation

Law (AktG), that the recommendations of the government commission on the “German Corporate Governance Code” in the version dated

June 06, 2008, as well as the version dated June 18, 2009, have been fulfilled, and that henceforth the recommendations in the version

dated June 18, 2009 will be fulfilled as well. The following exceptions apply: 

D&O insurance policies for supervisory boards do not provide for a deductible. In the view of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board,

there is a risk that the agreement to share costs would conflict with the aspirations of ISRA VISION AG to recruit highly qualified persons

for the Supervisory Board (Code item 3.8). 

Before VorstAG came into effect the main committee decided and regularly verified the total remuneration received by each Executive Board

Member. Payments to the Executive Board and a Remuneration Report are recorded in the consolidated financial statements. They are not

recorded in a manner indicating the composition of the individual elements nor disclosed in a separate remuneration report within the

Corporate Governance Report. In 2006, the Annual General Meeting decided that total remuneration for all members of the Executive Board

should be disclosed (rather than the individual salaries). The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board are of the opinion that this will

properly and sufficiently fulfill the information requirements to which the shareholders are entitled (Code item 4.2.2, 4.2.4 and 4.2.5). 

The ISRA VISION AG Supervisory Board consists of six members. Because of the low number of members, it was deemed unnecessary to

form a nomination committee. This does not affect the efficiency of the Supervisory Board, however (Code item 5.3.3).

There is no age limit for members of the Supervisory Board, as this is not seen as appropriate (Code item 5.4.1).

In order to expedite the course of the General Meeting, Supervisory Board Members are elected through a single vote. Before presenting

the voting list to the General Meeting, the Supervisory Board ensures that all Supervisory Board candidates on the list have the requisite

knowledge, skills and professional experience, and that they are not encumbered by potential conflicts of interest (Code item 5.4.3). 

Remuneration of Supervisory Board members applies to the positions of Chairman and Vice Chairman. Given the size of the Company and

the level of Supervisory Board remuneration, it was not deemed appropriate to provide additional remuneration for committee chairs or

members. The same applies to additional, performance-based remuneration for the Supervisory Board. Payments to the members of the

Supervisory Board are recorded in the consolidated financial statements. There is no provision for publishing individual details concerning

the remuneration of the Supervisory Board members. In this manner, the requirements for information to which the shareholders are enti-

tled will be fulfilled both appropriately and adequately (Code item 5.4.6).

The Executive Board of ISRA VISION AG treats all shareholders equally. This is especially true with regard to critical information about the

Company’s performance. Many individual topics are explained by means of regular investor/analyst presentations using charts. These charts

are never relevant to current market prices, however, and are not published on the internet since they contain proprietary information (Code

item 6.3).  

Members of the Executive and Supervisory Board, as well as their family members, disclose any personal transactions involving Company

shares in a timely manner. A shareholding structure statement, containing a breakdown of the shares held by members of the Executive

Board and Supervisory Board, was not released in financial year 2007/2008. Such a shareholding statement will be again released in finan-

cial year 2009/2010, however (Code item 6.6).

The company observes the current statutory requirements and publishes the Company’s consolidated financial statements within 4 months

of the end of the financial year. (Interim reports are published within 2 months of the end of the reporting period.) Regular publication with-

in the timeframe recommended by the Corporate Governance Codex would require an increase in the size of the internal accounting struc-

ture and would thus entail significantly higher costs, given the size of the Company. This would not be compatible with the goal of main-

taining lean management structures (Code item 7.1.2).

Corporate Governance Report
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Consolidated Financial Statements
(IFRS)

Darmstadt, September 30, 2009
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Consolidated total operating revenue EBITDA-EBIT Statement*

Consolidated Income Statement 
(IFRS)

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Explanation Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Net sales 58,153 68,286 

Cost of sales 28,166 32,480 

Gross operating result (gross profit) 29,987 35,806 

Research and development 7,699 7,496 

Total costs 10,187 10,803 

Depreciation and amortization 14 5,248 4,778 

Grants – – 52 

Capitalized work 14 – 7,736 – 8,033 

Sales and marketing costs 10,270 11,130 

Administration costs 3,778 4,446 

Sales and administration costs 14,049 15,576 

Other operating expenditure/revenue 1,021 203 

Interest income 8 136 399

Interest expense 8 –1,136 –2,000 

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 8,261 11,336 

Taxes 9 1,844 3,346 

Net profit 6,418 7,990 

Minority interests – 49 409 

Net profit after minority interests 6,466 7,581 

Earnings per share in F
(diluted/undiluted) 1.52 1.76 

Shares issued 4,258,140 4,317,050 

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Net sales 58,153 68,286

Capitalized work 7,736 8,033

Total output 65,889 76,319

Cost of materials 14,139 16,478

Cost of labor excluding depreciation 13,690 15,552

Cost of production excluding depreciation 27,830 32,031

Gross profit 38,059 44,289

Research and development, total 10,187 10,803

Sales and marketing costs 10,024 10,818

Administration costs 3,688 4,322

Sales and administration costs excluding depreciationungen 13,711 15,138

Other operational expenditure/revenue 1,021 256

EBITDA 15,182 18,603

Depreciation and amortization 5,921 5,666

Total costs 29,819 31,608

EBIT 9,261 12,937

Financial result – 1,000 – 1,601

EBT 8,261 11,336

Taxes 1,844 3,346

Net profit 6,418 7,990

Minority interests – 49 409

Net profit after minority interests 6,466 7,581

Earnings per share in F 1.52 1.76

Shares issued 4,258,140 4,317,050

* This pro forma presentation is an additional presentation based on the comprehensive presentation given in previous years and therefore not part 
of the IFRS consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated balance sheet

(in F thousands) Explanation Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,168 12,544

Securities 0 16

Trade receivables 10 37,110 37,793

Inventories 11 15,077 17,244

Other assets 12 1,475 2,743

Tax receivables 13 1,472 2,878

Total current assets 62,302 73,218

Fixed assets

Goodwill 14 37,586 38,681

Other intangible assets 14 33,901 31,009

Tangible assets 15 2,691 2,649

Other assets 12 900 874

Deferred tax assets 20 4,436 3,279

Total fixed assets 79,514 76,492

Total assets 141,816 149,710

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Short-term liabilities

Trade payables 17 5,337 8,288

Liabilities to banks 16 2,228 13,482

Provisions 18 825 653

Tax payables 1,897 1,178

Other liabilities 19 8,166 10,879

Advanced payments 406 590

Total short-term liabilities 18,859 35,070

Long-term liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 20 13,048 12,289

Liabilities to banks 17 26,925 24,885

Provisions for pensions 21 1,784 1,757

Total long-term liabilities 41,757 38,931

Total liabilities 60,616 74,001

Equity 22

Issued capital 4,381 4,338

Capital reserves 37,806 37,168

Own shares – 503 – 469

Reserve for cash flow hedges – 347 0

Currency exchange variations – 1,326 – 1,139

Profit brought forward 33,943 26,999

Net profit after minority interests 6,466 7,581

Minority interests 780 1,231

Total equity 81,200 75,709

Total equity and liabilities 141,816 149,710
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Explanation Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Net profit 6,417 7,990

Change in tax liabilities/reimbursement claims, 
including change in deferred taxes 3,274 466

Changes in provisions 199 – 1,835

Depreciation and amortization 5,921 5,666

Change in inventories 2,166 – 1,260

Change in trade receivables and other assets 2,020 – 7,874

Change in trade payables and other liabilities – 4,503 1,065

Interest income – 136 – 399

Interest expenditure 1,136 1,921

Other non-cash transactions – 136 635

Cash flow from operating activities 16,358 6,375

Cash proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 20 19

Investments in tangible assets – 660 – 463

Investments in intangible assets – 8,257 – 8,536

Investments in acquisitions 25 – 1,926 – 13,504

Cash flow from investment activities – 10,823 – 22,484

Dividend payments – 637 – 651

Share repurchases – 628 – 469

Cash inflow from the sale of own share 645 0

Cash proceeds from loans 0 9,072

Repayment of financial liabilities – 9,198 – 105

Interest received 136 399

Interest paid – 1,137 – 1,921

Cash flow from financing activities – 10,819 6,325

Change in financial resources fund from currency variations – 92 36

Change in financial resources fund – 5,376 – 9,748

Net cash flow

Financal resources fund on October 1, 2008 12,544 22,292

Financal resources fund on September 30, 2009 7,168 12,544

Change in financial resources fund – 5,376 – 9,748
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the period October 01, 2008 to September 30, 2009

Share of
equity
capital 

held by
Reserve Net ISRA 

for Change profit VISION 
cash- from Profit after AG

Issued Capital Own flow currency brought minority share- Minority
(in F thousands) capital reserves shares hedges variations forward interests holders interests Equity

As of Oct. 1, 2008 4,338 37,168 – 469 0 – 1,139 34,580 0 74,478 1,231 75,709

Capital increase 43 580 624 624 

Own shares 57 – 33 24 24 

Reserve for 
cash flow hedges – 347 – 347 – 347 

Change from 
currency variations – 187 – 187 2 – 184 

Dividends – 637 – 637 – 637 

Profit of the
period 6,466 6,466 – 49 6,417 

Acquisition of Parsytec
minority interests 0 – 405 – 405

As of Sep. 30, 2009 4,381 37,806 – 503 – 347 – 1,326 33,943 6,466 80,420 780 81,200 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the period October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2008

Share of
equity
capital 

held by
Reserve Net ISRA 

for Change profit VISION 
cash- from Profit after AG

Issued Capital Own flow currency brought minority share- Minority
(in F thousands) capital reserves shares hedges variations forward interests holders interests Equity

As of Oct. 1, 2007 4,338 37,168 0 0 – 1,152 27,650 0 68,004 1,967 69,970

Own shares – 469 – 469 – 469 

Change from 
currency variations 13 13 23 36 

Dividends – 651 – 651 – 651 

Profit of the
period 7,581 7,581 409 7,990 

Acquisition of Parsytec 
minority interests 0 – 1,167 – 1,167

As of Sep. 30, 2008 4,338 37,168 – 469 0 – 1,139 26,999 7,581 74,478 1,231 75,709 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of September 30, 2009

1. General information 

ISRA VISION AG, Darmstadt (hereinafter “ISRA” or “Company”) was founded on September 23, 1997 and was registered in the commer-

cial register of the Local Court of Darmstadt under the name ISRA VISION SYSTEMS AG and the registration number HRB 6820 on

 September 25, 1997. ISRA shares were first listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange on April 20, 2000. A resolution to change the company

name from ISRA VISION SYSTEMS AG to ISRA VISION AG was adopted at the general meeting of March 28, 2006, and was entered into

the commercial register on November 15, 2006. The Company’s headquarters is located in Darmstadt. The financial year runs from October

1 to September 30. The financial year equals the calendar year in the case of two of the subsidiaries included in the consolidated  financial

statements: ISRA VISION (Shanghai) Co. LTD and Metronom Automation GmbH. An interim balance sheet has been prepared for these two

subsidiaries for purposes of the consolidated financial statements. 

The purpose of the Company is to develop, market, employ, distribute and sell products, systems, equipment, and services in the areas of

machine vision, automation, software and robot technology.

ISRA VISION AG’s annual consolidated financial statements were prepared in line with Section 315a of the German Commercial Code

(HGB) and in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and with the pertinent interpretation of the Inter national

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) regarding how these are to be applied in accordance with Regulation No. 1606/2002 of the European

Parliament and in accordance with the European Council’s ruling on applying international accounting standards in the European Union.

The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared in Euros. The group of consolidated companies has grown in comparison to the

previous year. ISRA VISION AG directly or indirectly holds 100 percent of the shares in the majority of the group companies. Minority inte-

rests held by other companies are stated according to their pro-rata share of the target subsidiary’s net assets. 

The consolidated annual financial statements were released by the Executive Board for publication on January 18, 2010. 

2. Business combinations 

In July 2009, ISRA VISION INDIA Private Limited was established. 

In November 2009, ISRA acquired a 24 percent minority interest with a value of F196k in the Turkish company VISTEK (Vistek Yapay Görme

ve Otomasyon Sanayi I
.
c, ve Dıs, Ticaret Anonim S, irketi). Thanks to its investment in the Istanbul-based Machine Vision specialist, ISRA will

boost its growth potential by strengthening its penetration of the Turkish market, as well as markets in the Middle East and Central Asia. ISRA

plans to acquire 100 percent of VISTEK within the new three to four years on the basis of an earn-out model. Once certain para meters have

been met, ISRA will be obligated to make an additional payment of F200k for the 24 percent minority interest in  VISTEK.

3. Accounting methods

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting  Standards/Inter -

national Accounting Standards (IFRS/IAS) of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Unless otherwise indicated, all figures

are rounded off to thousands of Euros (Fk).

The company presents a voluntary consolidated income statement according to the consolidated total operating revenue/EBITDA-EBIT

statement method typical for the industry; the company also published its consolidated income statement according to the IFRS cost of sales

method. The company decided not to use the less informative total cost (type of expenditure) method provided by IFRS. The key differences

between the cost of sales method and the consolidated total operating revenue/EBITDA-EBIT pro-forma calculation are as follows: Profit

margins increase because they are associated with net sales instead of total output (net sales plus capitalized work). Capitalized work does

not appear in the IFRS cost of sales method and is assigned to the R&D functional area. Depreciation and amortization is spread over the

relevant functional areas.

(a) General accounting methods

• Percentage of completion method (POC) for valuing work in progress according to IAS 11:

According to IAS 11 in conjunction with IAS 18, sales and corresponding profits may be realized according to the percentage of

 completion method – insofar as the requirements have been fulfilled. The degree of completion is defined in line with the status of the

work carried out by analyzing in detail the status of order processing in relation to current expenditure, compared with the currently

assessed, expected total order expenditure. 
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Orders are listed under trade receivables. If accumulated services (cost of orders and profit/loss) in exceptional cases exceed advance

payments, they will be set up as an asset as “future receivables from construction contracts” accruing from deliveries and services

 provided. 

• Expenses for internally generated intangible assets according to IAS 38. 

In accordance with IAS 38, expenditures for product development are capitalized subject to clearly defined preconditions and  depre -

ciated over the normal useful operating life. The conditions for capitalization were examined and found to be fulfilled. 

Only development costs not comprising any research portion were capitalized.

The capitalized work in the year under review is written off on a linear basis over the course of its useful life – generally six years. The

developments finished in the course of the year were proportionally depreciated starting upon completion. Non-completed development

work is written off upon completion. The corresponding depreciation is recorded as a cost under “research and development” in the

 consolidated income statement. (see also Notes, part 14). The recoverability of book value is ensured by a continuous process of

 monitoring and support of the development projects. Each year, the recoverability of book value for capitalized balance sheet items is

verified by means of an impairment test. This involves calculating the present value of future surplus inflows associated with the relevant

development project. Insofar as present value is found to exceed the book value of the capitalized work, a corresponding adjustment is

immediately made to reflect the value impairment.

• Provision for pensions in accordance with IAS 19

The evaluation of pension obligations in accordance with IAS 19 is carried out in line with the projected unit credit method allowing for

future increases to salary and pensions (IAS 19).

• Accounting of share-based remuneration transactions in line with IFRS 2.

Stock-based remuneration from the stock option programs for employees which has been settled in cash after the end of the lock-up

period has been booked as a liability. Personnel expenditures and the resultant liabilities must be entered in the balance sheet pursuant

to IFRS 2. 

(b) Discretionary decisions 

When applying balance sheet and valuation methods, the corporate management made some discretionary decisions. When drawing up

the balance sheet for the pension obligations, the company chose to apply the "corridor method". If the company had chosen another

 calculation method, this might, under certain circumstances, have had an impact on the amount of the provision for pensions and on the

personnel expenditures.

(c) Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires that assumptions or estimates be made which have an effect on the methods

used in compiling the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated income statement. The actual figures may deviate from these

assumptions and estimates. Essentially, assumptions and estimates concern the valuation of provisions and inventories, the recoverability of

the goodwill and the likelihood that the receivables or deferred tax assets will be realized.

(d) Consolidation

In addition to ISRA’s individual financial statements, the consolidated financial statements include the individual financial statements of the

subsidiaries, which were also prepared in line with IFRSs/IASs. As a rule, the date of initial consolidation is the date upon which ISRA gained

the controlling interest. During initial consolidation, hidden assets and liabilities are identified. Any resulting asset-side balancing item is

 stated as goodwill. In accordance with IFRS 3 (Business combinations), goodwill is no longer written off on a scheduled basis. Transactions

between consolidated companies are eliminated during consolidation.

The Industrial Automation and Surface Vision segments were, as in the previous year, defined as cash-generating units.

(e) Currency translation

The national currencies of the consolidated companies are their functional currencies. The Group currency is the Euro. When preparing the

consolidated financial statements, the individual financial statements are converted into Euros; balance sheet items are converted using the

closing rate on the balance sheet date, whereas the items of the profit and loss accounts are converted at the average exchange rate.  Equity

capital is converted using historical exchange rates. Currency translation differences are recorded within equity so that they do not affect the

net profit for the period and are only realized when the relevant investment is sold.
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Foreign currency entries in the individual financial statements are converted into the functional currency of the consolidated companies

 during the year in which they occur. Foreign currency receivables and payables are entered at the daily exchange rate, at balance sheet

date they are translated at closing rate, which effects the income statement.

(f) Realization of sales and other revenue

Except for POC sales, sales are recorded at the point of time at which the goods are delivered or the services are provided.

(g) Corporate and product-related advertising

The costs of corporate and product-related advertising are recorded as expenses at the time they are incurred.

(h) Research and development costs

Research is the search for new insights that are intended for use in developing new products and processes as well as in improving  existing

ones. Costs arising in this context are carried as expenses at the time they are incurred.

(i) Goodwill, impairment test, software and other intangible assets

Derivative goodwill amounts from company acquisitions are calculated based on the difference between the purchase price and the re-

 valued pro-rata equity capital. The recoverability of derivative goodwill is reviewed once a year in the context of the “impairment test.”

 Impairments tests are also conducted if there are any indications of a decrease in value. 

For business divisions representing primary segments, the value in use is determined using DCF models and then applied as the basis for

the impairment tests. 

The intangible assets identified when purchasing a company are subject to scheduled depreciation over their envisaged useful life or at

most until the right expires.

Software that has been acquired by purchase is capitalized and written off over a normal useful life of four years. Other intangible assets

that have been acquired by purchase are carried at their acquisition cost and are subject to planned depreciation over their envisaged  useful

life or at most until the right or license expires.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

The financial resources in the cash flow statement comprise checks, cash and credit balances at banks.

(k) Trade receivables and other assets

Trade receivables and other assets are carried at their recoverable amount. Possible bad debts are taken into account by way of individual

allowances. Other assets include travel expenses advanced to employees, lease down payments, rent deposits, pension plan re-insurance

claims, as well as additional such assets. Contracted work requiring expenditure on engineering, installation and start-up is evaluated by the

“percentage of completion” method and recorded in the balance sheet as receivables from goods and services supplied, in accordance

with the rules of the IFRSs/IASs.

(l) Inventories

These items are valued at purchasing and production cost or at the lower market price on the balance sheet date. Elements of production

expenses are direct material costs, direct production costs, overheads for materials and production and depreciation of equipment. Financ-

ing and sales and marketing costs are not included in the manufacturing costs. An average cost method is used. 

(m) Tangible assets

Equipment and office fittings are carried on the balance sheet at their acquisition or production cost less planned depreciation. The costs

of borrowing are carried as an expense at the time at which they are incurred. This also applies to repair and maintenance costs. Planned

depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the respective assets.
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The useful life of the assets to be written down is shown in the following table: 

(n) Value impairments

A value-impairment adjustment is made whenever the projected amounts recouped from a given asset do not cover its residual book value. 

(o) Trade payables and other payables

Trade payables and other liabilities are carried at their cost of repayment. These are exclusively current items, so that discounting is not

required.

(p) Financial liabilities

For the year under review, financial liabilities were reported vis-à-vis the following credit institutions: Baden-Württembergischen Bank AG,

Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KfW), and Dresdner Bank. 

(q) Other provisions

Provisions were formed for liabilities recorded on the balance sheet date which are the result of past commercial activities, in an amount

which, after careful assessment, seems to be the most likely one.

(r) Deferred taxes

Taxes are deferred according to the balance sheet-oriented liabilities method. According to this method, differences existing on the balance

sheet date between the valuation according to the IFRSs/IASs and the valuation according to tax law for assets and liabilities are to be taken

into account by deferring tax assets or liabilities. This requires that the different valuation either decreases or increases future taxable income.

The period under review is not limited. In the case of deferred tax assets, the possibility of tax losses carried forward is also taken into

account. The amount is capitalized to the extent to which realization of this amount is regarded as being realistic on the balance sheet date. 

The company and its subsidiaries are legally independent units and their registered offices are not at the same location. This means that

the parent company and its subsidiaries are subject to different fiscal jurisdictions. Generally, netting out of tax assets and liabilities is only

possible within the same fiscal jurisdiction.

(s) Other taxes

Other taxes solely comprise motor vehicle tax – this is shown under “Other operating expenses“.

(t) Allocations from public authorities

These grants are recorded according to plan upon reception as receipts to cover for expenses arising in the given field under “other

 revenue”. In the event of grants being awarded for investments, the grant is accounted for as a liability and amortized over the envisaged

useful life of the capital goods.

(u) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another

entity. On initial recognition the financial instrument needs to be classified according to the substance of the contractual agreement and

according to the definitions for financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments. 

Financial assets specifically include cash, trade receivables, as well as granted loans and other receivables. 

Financial liabilities are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset. Financial liabilities especially include trade payable,

bank liabilities and derivative financial liabilities. 

Expected useful life

Technical equipment 4 years

Office equipment/furnishings 3 – 10 years

Buildings 40 years
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Financial instruments are applied and evaluated according to IAS 39. A financial asset or a financial liability is included in the balance sheet

when ISRA becomes a contractual party to the rules of the financial instrument. 

The initial accounting of the settlement date is relevant for purchases and sales typical on the market; this is the day on which the asset is

delivered by or to ISRA. 

By its initial recognition financial assets have to be measured at its fair value plus. The subsequent measurement will be based on the

 classification of the asset into one of four categories: (a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, (b) held-to-maturity investments,

(c) loans and receivables, or (d) available-for-sale financial assets 

Loans and receivables and financial investments held until their final maturity are valued with the continued purchase costs based on amor-

tised costs using the effective interest method. Book values are examined as of every financial statement closing date, to determine whether

there are any concrete indications of value impairment. Any possible impairment loss will be recorded directly in the consolidated financial

statements affecting the income statement. The impairment loss is calculated from the difference between the book value and the current

fair value for the asset. For financial investments held up until final maturity, receivables and liabilities, the impairment loss results of a cash

value of the estimated discounted future cash flows. 

Impairment losses are recorded in a value adjustment account. If the impairment loss persists for a period of three years, the amounts are

depreciated by debiting the value adjustment account. 

Assets held for trading are evaluated based on their current fair value. Any profit or loss resulting from subsequent measurement is record-

ed directly in the consolidated financial statements with effect of the income statement. Financial assets available for sale are assessed based

on their current fair value. The profits and losses resulting from the subsequent measurement are recorded in the equity capital with no effect

on the profit/loss, except for the value adjustments, profits and losses from the currency translation. By derecognition the profit or loss record-

ed previously in the equity capital must be recorded in the period results. 

For the initial recognition of financial assets, ISRA has decided not to designate financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss. 

When they are initially recognized, financial liabilities are measured based on their current fair value. The subsequent valuations are

 performed based on amortized costs using the effective interest method, except for derivative instruments. 

ISRA uses derivative financial instruments exclusively to hedge against risks from interest-rate fluctuations. 

Derivative financial statements are initially recognized at current market value, which is also used for subsequent measurement. In the con-

text of accounting as a cash-flow hedge, the change in current market value of the effective portion of the hedging instrument is reported

under equity capital and does not affect the income statement. On the other hand, the non-effective portion of the hedging instrument’s

change in value is reported on the income statement. No fair-value hedging was performed in the financial year under review. 

(v) Balancing the leasing contracts

As of the balance sheet date, there are only leasing contracts in the form of “operating” leasing contracts since the primary financial risks

and opportunities fall on the lessor. This means that the lessee does not have carry out any capitalization. The leasing installments have

been expensed in the income statement as incurred linearly across duration of the leasing contract. There are no leased assets to be

 considered as asset purchases with long-term financing (financing leasing).
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2. Segment reporting by division

(Primary segments) for the consolidated balance sheet

(in F thousands Industrial Automation       Surface Vision Undistributed Total

as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. 
30, 2009 30, 2008 30, 2009 30, 2008 30, 2009 30, 2008 30, 2009 30, 2008

ASSETS

Assets

Current assets 12,656 13,412 41,006 46,814 8,640 16,266 62,302 76,492

Fixed assets 13,721 10,489 61,357 59,451 4,436 3,279 79,514 73,218

Total assets 26,377 23,901 102,363 106,265 13,076 19,545 141,816 149,710

Equity & liabilities

Short-term liabilities 2,199 2,422 12,535 18,190 4,125 14,459 18,859 35,070

Long-term liabilities 0 0 1,784 1,757 39,973 37,174 41,757 38,931

Equity 0 0 0 0 81,200 75,709 81,200 75,709

Total equity & liabilities 2,199 2,422 14,319 19,947 125,298 127,342 141,816 149,710

Investments 
in reporting year 373 3,444 8,927 9,979 0 0 9,300 13,424

Goodwill book value 4,843 4,846 32,743 33,835 0 0 37,586 38,681

Depreciation and 
amortization

Goodwill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other intangible assets 591 1,037 4,772 3,982 0 0 5,363 5,019

Tangible assets 221 359 344 289 0 0 565 648

Notes

1. Segment reporting by division

(Primary segments) for selected positions of the consolidated income statement

There was no interdivisional revenue. POC sales figures (percentage of completion method) totaled F3,126k (previous year: F852k) in the

Industrial Automation segment and F19,051k (previous year: F17,838k) in the Surface Vision segment.

The sector definition is based on the corporate structure’s focus on a market-oriented organization. The primary sectors reflect the business

divisions which sell specific products in particular markets: 

• INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION 

The target markets of this division are primarily the automotive industry, the machine tool manufacturers, the automation industry,  general

industry, plant and system manufacturers as well as the OEM markets in which ISRA products are integrated into customers’ products

as OEM systems. In these cases, ISRA applies the entire range of its technologies, utilizing Surface Inspection products in addition to the

primary products from Robot Vision and Quality Vision.

• SURFACE VISION

This business division concentrates on surface inspection technology. This primarily concerns web materials which are checked for

defects during the production process. The main focus is on the flat glass, solar, display glass foil, nonwovens, metal, paper and print-

ing industries. 

(in F thousands) Industrial Automation Surface Vision

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 – Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008 Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Net sales 10,900 15,843 47,253 52,443

EBITDA 3,101 4,760 12,081 13,843

EBIT 1,343 3,042 7,918 9,895
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4. Segment reporting by region

for the consolidated balance sheet

3. Segment reporting by region

(Secondary segments)

(in F thousands) Germany, Europe North America Asia, ROW*

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 – Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 – Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008 Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008 Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Net sales 26,745 34,293 8,431 10,181 22,977 23,812

* ROW = Rest of the world, i.e. all other countries

(in F thousands) Germany, Europe America/Asia Undistributed Total

as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept. as of Sept.
30, 2009 30, 2008 30, 2009 30, 2008 30, 2009 30, 2008 30, 2009 30, 2008

ASSETS

Assets

Current assets 55,939 68,707 6,363 7,785 0 0 62,302 76,492

Fixed assets 76,675 72,226 2,839 993 0 0 79,514 73,218

Total assets 132,614 140,933 9,202 8,778 0 0 141,816 149,710

Equity & liabilities

Short-term liabilities 16,535 33,128 2,324 1,943 0 0 18,859 35,070

Long-term liabilities 41,702 38,879 55 52 0 0 41,757 38,931

Equity 0 0 0 0 81,200 75,709 81,200 75,709

Total equity & liabilities 58,237 72,007 2,379 1,995 81,200 75,709 141,816 149,710

Investments 9,248 13,378 53 46 0 0 9,300 13,424

5. Cost of materials with changes to inventory of goods

6. Total personnel costs

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Expenditure on raw materials, ancillary resources and supplies – 13,138 – 17,252

Change in inventories – 1,001 774

Total – 14,139 – 16,478

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Salaries and wages – 19,588 – 22,804

Social contributions – 3,175 – 3,011

Total – 22,762 – 25,815
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7. Total depreciation/amortization

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Depreciation on intangible assets – 5,355 – 5,019

Tangible assets – 565 – 648

Total according to inventory of assets – 5,921 – 5,666

Of the depreciation/amortization of intangible assets, F3,781k (previous year: F3,352k) is accounted for by capitalized work that was depre-

ciated over a period of six years after completion.

8. Financial result

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Interest income 136 399

Interest expense 1,136 2,000

Net interest income – 1,000 – 1,601

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Income tax

Germany 697 1,046

Other countries – 45 – 27

652 1,018

Deferred tax expenditure

Germany 897 2,327 

Other countries 295 0

1,192 2,327

Total 1,844 3,346

9. Tax on earnings

The tax expenses shown in the income statement are attributable to Germany and foreign countries as well as to current tax expenses and

deferred tax expenses as follows:

Oct. 1, 2008 – Oct. 1, 2007 –
(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Earnings before tax 8,261 11,336

Expected tax payable on earnings 2,530 3,471

Effect of foreign tax on earnings – 271 – 12

First-time effect of capitalizing deferred taxes (asset side of the balance sheet) –177 0

Consolidation and other effects – 238 – 79

Reported tax on earnings 1,844 3,346

In the 2008/2009 financial year, the corporate tax rate totaled 15 percent, plus the German reunification tax of 5.5 percent of corporate tax.

This resulted in an effective corporate tax rate of 15.83 percent. Taking into account the local business taxes – which came to 14.87 per-

cent – this resulted in an overall tax rate of around 30.7 percent (previous year: 30.6 percent).

The deferred taxes in the single entity financial statements for ISRA LLC, ISRA VISION SYSTEMS INC., INNOMESS Corp., NANOsystems

LLC, ISRA SURFACE VISION Inc., ISRA Image Automation Inc. and ISRA VISION Ltd. (formerly Image Automation Ltd.) were calculated

based on a tax rate of 30 percent. For ISRA VISION (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. a 15 percent tax rate of was applied. A uniform tax rate of 31.58

percent was applied for the German Parsytec group.

The tax charges, based on the tax rate applicable to ISRA as a parent company, and the actual tax charges of the Group can be reconciled

as follows:
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The allowance for receivables disclosed as other operating expenses were made exclusively on a case-by-case basis. The check of the

receivables disclosed on the balance sheet date did not result in any other recognizable risks for the Company’s receivables. Advance

 payments already received in the amount of F2,614k (previous year: F1,420k) have been deducted from the receivables from unfinished

orders evaluated on the percentage of completion basis. 

The value adjustments on trade receivables performed as follows:

The receivables are structured according to maturity dates as follows:

With regard to overdue but non-value-impaired receivables, there are no indications that the debtors will not ultimately fulfill their payment

obligations. 

(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Trade receivables of domestic Group companies 13,502 17,066

Trade receivables of foreign Group companies 3,454 3,456

Receivables from unfinished contracts 
(based on the percentage-of-completion method) 20,154 17,270

Balance sheet value 37,110 37,793

10. Trade receivables

(in F thousands) 2008/2009 2007/2008

Value-adjustment account as of 1 October 379 234

Usage 98 52

Liquidations 24 3

Allocations 260 201

Currency exchange rate differential – 9 – 2

Value-adjustment account as of 30 September 508 379

(in F thousands) Of which: not overdue Of which: not value-impaired as of the reporting date
or value-impaired as of but overdue (for one of the periods below)

Trade receivables Book value the reporting date < 31 days 31–60 days 61–90 days > 90 days

As of Sep. 30, 2009 37,110 28,241 5,503 737 558 2,071

As of Sep. 30, 2008 37,793 28,757 2,437 1,423 1,078 4,097

(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Raw materials, ancillary resources and supplies 4,900 5,223 

Work in progress 7,794 8,468 

Finished products 2,384 3,552 

Balance sheet value 15,077 17,244 

11. Inventories

The inventories include:

In the 2008/2009 financial year, impairment losses on inventory amounted to F119k (previous year: F69k).
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(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Loans and other receivables from employees 337 357

Insurance claims (liability insurance) 900 874

Rental deposits 149 153

Miscellaneous 989 2,233

Balance sheet value 2,375 3,617

12. Other assets

This category comprises the following short-term and long-term assets:

14. Intangible assets

Intangible assets include:

Software,
(in F thousands) Goodwill licenses Capitalized work Total

Acquisition and production costs

October 1, 2008 40,696 17,469 35,227 93,391

Additions 384 521 7,736 8,641

Additions from acquisitions 0 0 0 0

Disposals 1,548 65 0 1,613

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations 57 – 2 – 3 52

September 30, 2009 39,589 17,923 42,960 100,472

Depreciation and amortization

October 1, 2008 2,014 6,933 14,754 23,701

Additions 0 1,582 3,781 5,363

Additions from acquisitions 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 65 0 65

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0

Impairment loss 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairment loss 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations – 11 0 – 3 – 15

September 30, 2009 2,003 8,449 18,531 28,984

Balance sheet value of intangible assets

October 1, 2008 38,681 10,536 20,473 69,691

September 30, 2009 37,586 9,473 24,428 71,488

(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Tax receivables 1,472 2,878

Balance sheet value 1,472 2,878

13. Tax receivables 
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The purchased software, the license costs and the intangible assets purchased as acquisitions, in so far as these were identifiable when the

purchase price was allocated, are shown under software and licenses.

The cumulative depreciations on the capitalized work come to a total of F18,531k (previous year: F14,754k); depreciations from the year

under review account for F3,781k (previous year: F3,352k). 

The goodwill impairment test is conducted based on the cash generating units (CGU) by comparing the amount recoverable with the book

value, where the amount recoverable is based on the value in use.

The value in use has been calculated using a discounted cash flow method, which is subject to the following premises:

• Cash flows depend on the management’s current planning for a period of five years. Significant planning assumptions have been made

regarding sales growth and EBIT margin. Management bases its planning on historical data as well as external market studies. 

• For the periods going beyond the planning, growth rates of 2.5 percent (previous year: 2.5 percent) have been assumed.

• A weighted-average cost of capital (WACC) of 10.6 percent was assumed (previous year: 10.6 percent).

The impairment tests have not resulted in the need for goodwill impairment.

The goodwill from the Industrial Automation segment totals F4,843k (previous year: F4,846k). For the Surface Visions segment, the goodwill

totals F32,743k (previous year: F33,835k).

The disposal of the goodwill is related to deferred tax assets on tax-related losses that have been carried forward. These tax-related losses

came to the company through the acquisition of the Parsytec Group and had not become active at that time because of the five-year plan

provided by management. The book value of goodwill must be adjusted by the amount of deferred tax assets on losses brought forward.

This is in accordance with IFRS 3.65, in conjunction with IAS 12.68 (as per IAS 12.93 in the version before modifications associated with

IFRS 3), while allowing for Statement of Position IDW RS HFA 19 from the German Institute of Public Auditors (Institut der Wirtschafts prüfer). 

ISRA VISION AG records the provision for depreciation for intangible assets in the positions of cost of sales, research and development,

and sales and general administrative costs, according to the use of the intangible asset. 

As of September 30, 2009, there were no contractual obligations to acquire intangible assets (as in the previous year).

Software,
(in F thousands) Goodwill licenses Capitalized work Total

Acquisition and production costs

October 1, 2007 36,600 16,889 27,197 80,686

Additions 4,424 504 8,033 12,961

Additions from acquisitions 0 79 0 79

Disposals 433 1 0 434

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations 104 – 1 – 3 100

September 30, 2008 40,696 17,469 35,227 93,391

Depreciation and amortization

October 1, 2007 2,017 5,243 11,403 18,664

Additions 0 1,667 3,352 5,019

Additions from acquisitions 0 23 0 23

Disposals 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0

Impairment loss 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairment loss 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations – 3 0 – 1 – 5

September 30, 2008 2,014 6,933 14,754 23,701

Balance sheet value of intangible assets

October 1, 2007 34,582 11,645 15,794 62,022

September 30, 2008 38,681 10,536 20,473 69,691
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Land and Technical Office Fixed assets
(in F thousands) buildings equipment equipment under construction Total

Acquisition and production costs

October 1, 2008 1,241 1,399 4,624 194 7,458

Additions 0 20 632 7 659

Additions from acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 677 0 677

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations – 16 0 – 28 – 1 – 45

September 30, 2009 1,225 1,418 4,551 201 7,396

Depreciation and amortization

October 1, 2008 67 1,219 3,487 35 4,808

Additions 34 73 455 3 565

Additions from acquisitions 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 651 0 651

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0

Impairment loss 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairment loss 0 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations – 4 0 – 14 0 – 18

September 30, 2009 98 1,292 3,277 38 4,705

Balance sheet value 

of tangible assets

October 1, 2008 1,173 180 1,138 159 2,650

September 30, 2009 1,127 126 1,274 163 2,691

15. Tangible assets

Total tangible assets include:

Land and Technical Office Fixed assets
(in F thousands) buildings equipment equipment under construction Total

Acquisition and production costs

October 1, 2007 1,255 1,313 4,078 170 6,816

Additions 0 86 377 0 463

Additions from acquisitions 689 0 282 0 971

Disposals 689 0 88 0 777

Reclassifications 0 0 – 21 21 0

Currency exchange variations – 14 0 – 3 3 – 15

September 30, 2008 1,241 1,399 4,624 194 7,458

Depreciation and amortization

October 1, 2007 36 997 3,010 0 4,044

Additions 33 222 381 11 648

Additions from acquisitions 7 0 202 0 209

Disposals 10 0 83 0 93

Reclassifications 0 0 – 21 21 0

Impairment loss 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairment loss 0 0 0 0 0

Currency exchange variations 1 0 – 2 3 1

September 30, 2008 67 1,219 3,487 35 4,808

Balance sheet value 
of tangible assets

October 1, 2007 1,219 316 1,067 170 2,773

September 30, 2008 1,173 180 1,138 159 2,650

As of September 30, 2009, there were no contractual obligations to acquire tangible assets (as in the previous year).
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(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Wages/salaries, performance bonuses, related social insurance 
contributions and remaining holiday entitlements 2,446 1,986

Other liabilities 5,721 8,894

Balance sheet value 8,166 10,879

16. Liabilities to banks

As of the balance sheet date, ISRA had long-term bank liabilities of F26,925k (previous year: F24,885k). These included liabilities to the

 Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau in the amount of F3,675k (previous year: F3,885k), F20,000k to Baden-Württembergische Bank (previous year:

F21,000k), as well as F3,250k to Dresdner Bank (previous year: F0).

The short term bank liabilities total F2,228k (previous year: F13,482k). These consist of F210k (previous year: F210k) to the Kreditanstalt für

Wiederaufbau (Reconstruction Loan Corporation), F1,000k to Baden-Württembergische Bank (previous year: F11,000k), F1,000k to 

Dresdner Bank (previous year: F0) and F18k to others (previous year: F2,272k).

As of September 30, 2009, the weighted average interest rate for bank liabilities totaled 2.22 percent (previous year: 4.82 percent).

17. Trade payables

Trade payables total F5,337k (previous year: F8,288k). The liabilities are being paid off regularly, taking full advantage of discount terms

offered. The liabilities are not subject to interest payments.

18. Other provisions 

Other profisions include the following items:

Of which
due in

next
Sept. 30, financial

(in F thousands) Oct. 1, 2008 Additions Usage Reversal 2009 year

Warranties 284 116 224 2 174 174

Employees’ Industrial Compensation 
Society 104 83 103 1 83 83

Contributions for severely handicapped 
persons/mutual benefit association 
for pensions 30 30 30 0 30 30

Other provisions 234 519 139 76 538 538

Balance sheet value 653 748 497 79 825 825

19. Other liabilities

In order to cover its warranty obligations, ISRA VISION AG reserves the warranty expenditures required for a financial year. 

In relation to advance payments from customers associated with maintenance contracts, a liability has been introduced to cover the remain-

ing period of the contracts. These other liabilities will be amortized over the remaining period of the contracts. 

A grant has been approved by a structure support program for innovative companies. The grant subsidizes jobs and the investments

 connected with them. For investments already made, a part of the grant went toward making investments. This is reported under “other

 liabilities” and will be written off over the expected useful life of the subsidized investments. The grant not yet resolved totaled F62k  (previous

year: F124k) as of September 30, 2009.
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Tax losses brought forward for Parsytec AG totaled 18.5 million Euros as of September 30, 2009 (previous year: 20.9 million Euros). No

deferred tax assets were set aside for 5.3 million Euros (previous year: 11.1 million Euros) of the tax losses carried forward. The Executive

Board has assessed the usability of the losses brought forward based on corporate planning for the years 2010-2014. 

Permanently valid losses brought forward amounted to 16.6 million Euros, within 20 years, 1.9 million Euros in losses brought forward will

expire. 

In the previous year, deferred taxes of F186k Euros were incurred on non-deductible interest. In the year under review 2008/2009, there

were no non-deductible interest amounts. 

21. Provisions for pensions

The provisions for pensions according to the company pensions plan has been evaluated on the basis of the projected unit credit method

(current once-off premium payment procedure) in accordance with IAS 19. Thereby the defined benefit obligation (DBO) and the current

service cost are calculated precisely for each individual case. The pension obligations were calculated using the mortality tables published

by Dr. Heubeck in 2005.

These pension reserves involve actual individual covenants.

The evaluation for ISRA VISION Lasor GmbH is based on the following assumptions: discount rate 5.25 percent (previous year: 6.00 per-

cent), expected rate of salary increase 2.50 percent p.a. (previous year: 2.50 percent), expected pension increase 1.75 percent p.a. (previ-

ous year: 1.75 percent). The income statement reflects interest costs of F49k (previous year: F43k) as well as amortization of F0 (previous

year: F0), minus rental payments made in the amount of F24k (previous year: F23k). 

For ISRA Parsytec GmbH, the following assumptions were made: discount rate of 5.25 percent (previous year: 6.00 percent),  expected rate

of salary increase 1.50 percent p.a. (previous year: 2.50 percent), expected pension increases of 1.75 percent p.a. (previous year: 1.75 per-

cent). The income statement reflects interest costs of F48k (previous year: F43k) as well as service costs F0 (previous year: F5k). 

(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2008

Intangible assets 7,406 6,748

Inventories – 1,446 – 1,795

Receivables, POC 6,044 5,763

Pension reserves 147 161

Other accruals 207 401

Other items 691 1,010

Deferred tax liabilities 13,048 12,289

Deferred tax assets 4,436 3,279

(in F thousands) Sept. 30, 2007 Sept. 30, 2006 Sept. 30, 2005

Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,734 959 1,049

Accruals for obligations(in F thousands) to employees Previous year

October 1, 2008 1,757 1,719

Current service period cost 0 5

Interest cost 95 91

Amortization – 44 – 36

Pension payments – 24 – 23

Actuarial gains and losses 60 – 125

Cash value of defined benefit obligations 1,843 1,632 

Excluded actural gains and losses –60 125

September 30, 2009 1,784 1,757

20. Deferred taxes 

The calculation of the deferred taxes is based on average profit tax rates of 30.9 percent (previous year: 30.9 percent) for Germany and

30 percent (previous year: 30 percent) for USA. The deferred tax assets result primarily from existing tax losses carried forward from the

German subsidiaries.
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22. Equity

a) Share capital

The Company’s share capital as of the balance sheet date totals F4,381,240.00, divided into bearer shares of F1.00 par value.

Equity developed as follows during the current financial year: 

At the beginning of the financial year, the issued capital amounted to F4,337,940.00.

Share capital increased due to the issuance of 43,300 shares with a par value of 1 Euro. This issue of shares relates to a contribution of

assets in the context of an increase of capital-in-kind.

The Company holds 68,051 own shares, which account for F68k (1.6 percent) of total share capital. 

In addition, the General Meeting held on March 20, 2007 resolved an amendment to the Articles of Association. This amendment authoriz-

es the Executive Board to increase the Company’s share capital until March 19, 2012 once only or on multiple occasions by issuing new

no-par value shares against cash or non-cash contributions, up to a maximum amount of F2,168,970.00 (authorized capital). With the agree-

ment of the Supervisory Board, The Executive Board is authorized, to exclude the statutory subscription rights of shareholders 

- for residual amounts,

- to secure shares in return for contributions of fixed assets, in particular in the context of mergers with other companies or the purchase

of other companies, parts of companies or of an interest in other companies.

- if the capital increase takes place by means of contribution in cash and the issued value is not, at the time of the final determination of

the issued value by the Executive Board, significantly less than the share price of the shares of a similar nature and scope which are

already quoted on the stock markets, when judged in terms of the provisions of §§ 203 Paragraphs 1 and 2 and 186 Paragraph 3

 Sentence 4 of the German Stock Corporation Law (Aktiengesetz) and the amount of the base capital attributable to the shares issued

under exclusion of the statutory subscription rights does not exceed F433,794.00 and 10 percent of the recorded base capital at the time

of the issue of the new shares. Realization of own shares has to be charged against this 10 percent limitation of base capital if they come

to effect due to authorization under shareholder exception from subscription according to § 71 Paragraph 1 Clause 8 of the  German

Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz, or AktG) in conjunction with § 186 Paragraph 3 Sentence 4 of the German Stock Corporation Act

(Aktiengesetz, or AktG). In addition, stocks used to service convertible or warrant bonds have to be offset against the 10 percent limita-

tion of base capital if the bond was issued under shareholder exception from subscription due to authorization according to § 186

 Paragraph 3 Sentence 4 of the German Stock Corporation Act.

Subject to agreement by the Supervisory Board, The Executive Board is authorized to determine the further details of implementing the

increase in capital stock from the authorized capital.

On the basis of a resolution passed by the Annual General Meeting on March 28, 2006, ISRA VISION AG may conditionally increase its

share capital by F250,000.00 by issuing up to 250,000 no-par value bearer shares to implement an employee equity compensation plan

(conditional capital).

Share capital was conditionally increased by up to F1,940,620 due to the issuance of up to 1,940,620 no-par value bearer shares (condi-

tional capital II). The conditional capital increase may only be carried out to the extent that the holder of convertible or warrant bonds, issued

on the basis of the authorization given to the Executive Board by the Annual General Meeting on March 24, 2009, makes use of this con-

version or warrent right, or to the extent that the holders, who are obliged to make the conversion fulfill their obligation to undertake the con-

version. The issue price will be based on the option/conversion price calculated in accordance with the aforementioned authorization res-

olution. The new shares will begin participating in Company profits as of the start of the financial year in which they are created (through

exercise of option/conversion rights and/or fulfillment of option/conversion obligations).

b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve primarily contains share premiums from the initial public offering and capital increases; expenditures from corporate

actions were also charged to the capital reserve. 

As of September 30, 2009, the capital reserve was F37,806k (previous year: F37,168k). The increase in the capital reserve was due to: 1)

The contribution of assets in the context of an increase of capital-in-kind (capital increase of F580k). 2) The posting of proceeds from the

sale of own shares (F57k).
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c) Reserve for cash flow hedges

The reserve for cash flow hedges is associated with the hedging of payment streams by means of interest rate swaps. This reserve was first

established in the current financial year. 

d) Minority interests

The minority interests in the equity capital comprise the portion of the equity capital, of the consolidated annual financial statements and of

the currency exchange variations recognized directly in equity that is to be allocated to the minority shareholders of the group company

Parsytec AG, which was acquired in the 2006/2007 financial year. 

e) Currency exchange variations

The currency exchange variations in the equity capital serve to record the differences that result from the currency conversions in the

 financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The balancing items for currency exchange variations increased in the 2008/2009 financial year

by F187k to F–1,326k.

f) Dividends

In the 2008/2009 financial year, ISRA paid out dividends for the 2007/2008 financial year in the sum of F637k. This corresponds to a

 dividend of F0.15 per share. 

23. Hedging transactions

In order to hedge against payment-stream risks associated with variable-interest liabilities, ISRA VISION has undertaken interest-rate swap

transactions which transform variable-interest liabilities into fixed-interest-rate liabilities. 

As of the balance sheet date, derivatives used for hedging purposes accounted for fair value of F347k (previous year: F0), which was reflect-

ed on the balance sheet but not the income statement. Payment streams in connection with hedged underlying transactions will terminate

in October 2013.

24. Other financial liabilities

These liabilities relate to mid-term and long-term leases of buildings and rentals of motor vehicles, the telephone system as well as of office

fittings. The resulting liabilities are as follows: 

There were no liabilities from investment projects already started on the balance sheet date. 

There are compensation-related hypothetical liabilities owed to the Management in the amount of around F900k (previous year: F900k).

The leasing contract on the building for ISRA SURFACE VISION GmbH in Herten includes a purchasing right in favor of ISRA SURFACE

VISION GmbH.

Annual expenditure in F thousands

2009 – 2014 3,655

After Sep. 30, 2014 331

Expenditure in the year under review 1,794

Previous year in F thousands

2008 – 2013 4,333

After Sep. 30, 2013 580

Expenditure in the year under review 1,494

Future minimum lease payments Previous year
under non-cancelable operate/lease contracts in F thousands in F thousands

Up to 1 year 249 249

Longer than 1 year and up to 5 years 994 994

Longer than 5 years 331 580
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The basis for the definition of the conditional leasing payments is the leasing of the building for its use as a production site and as the new

SURFACE VISION headquarters in Herten. 2,407sqm of office space, a 924sqm production hall and parking spaces have been leased. The

lease began on February 1, 2006 and expires after 10 years; an extension to the lease of a further seven years is possible. Measures that

increase the costs of the lease or overheads may only be carried out with the approval of ISRA SURFACE VISION GmbH. The stipulated

lease has increased because of the actual construction costs, which have exceeded the planned construction costs due to changes that

ISRA made to the plans. 

Rent expenditures in the 2008/2009 financial year from the operate lease relationship totaled F249k (previous year: F249k). 

25. Observations on consolidated cash flow statement

The cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and bank deposits available on short notice. A security deposit of F1,365k (previ-

ous year: F1,575k) was made, as well as further security deposits amounting to F362k (previous year: F375k).

Company acquisitions in the year under review resulted in a reduction of liquidity amounting to roughly F1,926k (previous year: F13,504k).

26. Transactions with affiliated companies or related parties

In a lease dated August 12, 1998 the Company leased administration, storage, and development premises at the Company's registered

office in Darmstadt from ISRA Bau-Mitarbeiter-Beteiligungsgesellschaft GbR, Darmstadt. The wife of the Chairman of the Executive Board of

ISRA VISION AG, Mrs. Ines Ersü, and a member of the Executive Board, are partners in this GbR (civil law partnership).The lease has a fixed

initial term of ten years – it may not be terminated during this period. The monthly rent amounts to 9,714 plus a lump-sum for ancillary costs

of 767. The terms and provisions of the rental agreement were negotiated at arm’s length. As of the balance sheet date, liabilities to ISRA

Bau-Mitarbeiter-Beteiligungsgesellschaft GbR amounted to F2k (previous year: F0). In the year under review, rental expenditure for GbR

amounted to F126k (previous year: F126k). Expenditure for Allen & Overy LLP amounted to F224k (previous year: F227k).

Company acquisition Cash balance at
(in F thousands) Acquisition costs Financial outflows time of acquisition Type of payment

Parsytec AG 799 799 Cash
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27. Categories of financial assets/liabilities and reconciliation statement

The categories of financial assets and liabilities correspond to the balance sheet positions as follows:

The cash and cash equivalents, the receivables/trade payables and other receivables/trade payables primarily have a short maturity. Their

book values as of the September 30, 2009, balance sheet date are therefore nearly the same as their fair value. The book value of the bank

liabilities is the same as their fair value since the revaluation of future interest payments will generally not significantly affect the book value

of the liability with regard to bank liabilities that have a variable interest rate.

28. Net profit/net loss

The net results of the financial instruments according to analysis categories are as follows:

Balance sheet valuation Balance sheet valuation
approach as per IAS 39 approach as per IAS 39

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Categorie Sept. 30, Amortised recognized Sept. 30, Amortised recognized

(in F thousands) as per IAS 39 2009 costs in equity 2008 costs in equity

Assets

Cash and cash Loans and
equivalents receivables 7.2 7.2 0.0 12.5 12.5 0.0

Loans and
Trade receivables receivables 37.1 37.1 0.0 37.8 37.8 0.0

Loans and
Othr assets receivables 2.4 2.4 0.0 3.6 3.6 0.0

Of which: aggregated into valuation categories as per IAS 39

Loans and receivables 46.7 46.7 0.0 54.0 54.0 0.0

Equity and liabilities

Financial
liabilities
measured at 

Trade payables amortised costs 5.3 5.3 0.0 8.3 8.3 0.0

Financial
liabilities
measured at

Liabilities to banks amortised costs 29.2 29.2 0.0 38.4 38.4 0.0

Derivative financial liabilities
related to hedging n/a 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

Financial
liabilities
measured at

Other liabilities amortised costs 8.3 8.3 0.0 11.5 11.5 0.0

Of which: aggregated into valuation categories as per IAS 39

Financial liabilities 
measured at 
amortised costs 42.8 42.8 0.0 58.1 58.1 0.0

From subsequent measurement Net result
From

interest and At Currency Value From
(in F thousands) dividends Fair value conversion adjustment disposals 2008/2009 2007/2008

Loans and receivables 134 278 – 236 87 264 – 240

Finacial liabilities measured
at amortised costs – 1,036 246 – 790 – 1,889



54

29. Personnel

During the 2008/2009 financial year the number of employees averaged around 361 (previous year: 372)

30. Information on capital management

Capital management essentially includes cash and cash equivalents, bank liabilities and equity capital.

The primary objective of capital management is to guarantee liquidity at any time. The group’s financing and liquidity is safeguarded  centrally

through in-depth financial planning.

31. Stock option program

As a publicly listed company, ISRA VISION AG has a special opportunity to let its employees participate directly in its profits via a stock

option program. 

The conditions for option rights, according to the old stock option program, on shares of ISRA VISION AG were laid down on the basis of

the authorization given by the Annual General Meeting on March 16, 2000 and are as follows: Options may only be issued to members of

the Executive Board, managers and employees of ISRA VISION AG and companies in the ISRA VISION AG group. 

At the beginning of the reporting period, there were 4,270 options owing. 14,248 options were issued in the reporting period. Within the

reporting period, no options were exercised, and 4,270 options expired in the reporting period. As of September 30, 2009, there were 14,248

options outstanding. On the same date, the total fair value of all options amounted to F47k (previous year: F1k). Accordingly, accounts

payable as of September 30, 2009 were booked as liabilities, and corresponding personnel costs were accounted.

Options may only be exercised after a blocking period has expired. According to the stock option program, the options can be exercised

for either cash or shares; however, ISRA VISION AG’s internal practice tends towards offering cash for stock options. An option holder’s

options expire if the option holder has terminated the employment relationship with the Company, or if they are no longer a member of a

statutory body of ISRA VISION AG or of a group company. Irrespective of this, options remain in force unchanged if the employment

 relationship ends due to the employee retiring or owing to professional disability. Options cannot be inherited or transferred. In addition,

option rights expire 5 years after the day they are issued. 

Options may only be exercised if at least one of the two predefined targets for success has been reached. These are based on the stock

performance in relation to purchase price and time of exercise. The subscription price for a share is given by the arithmetical average of

the closing prices in XETRA trading for the share in the period between the 15th and 5th trading day (before the option is issued) multiplied

by a factor of 1.1. 

The Executive Board is authorized to specify the further details of the subscription conditions and of the issue and structure of the options.

In addition, the Executive Board is authorized to transfer the shares needed to fulfill the option rights by issuing acquired own shares or via

new shares by way of an implemented capital increase. Insofar as members of the Executive Board are affected, the further details will be

specified by the Supervisory Board.

32. Events after the balance sheet date

In November 2009, ISRA has acquired a 24-percent minority interest in the Turkish company VISTEK (Vistek Yapay Görme ve Otomasyon

Sanayi I
.
c, ve Dıs, Ticaret Anonim S, irketi). Based in Istanbul, Vistek develops innovative Machine Vision solutions. ISRA plans to acquire 100

percent of VISTEK within the next three to four years on the basis of an earn-out model.

Reporting year Previous year

Employees 348 354

Temporary staff 13 18

Total 361 372
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33. New IFRS standards to be voluntarily applied

Till now, ISRA VISION has not applied the following IASB publications, given that their use is not yet mandatory: 

• IFRS 1: First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. Modification with regard to acquisition costs of a share-

holding in the context of first-time application (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009). Revamped and

restructured version (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2010).

• IFRS 2: Share-based payment – modification with regard to conditions for exercising shares and annulments (compulsory for

 financial years starting January 01, 2009)

• IFRS 3: Business combinations – extensive revision with regard to the application of acquisition methods (compulsory for financial

years starting July 01, 2009)

• IFRS 7: Financial instruments (disclosures) – modifications to improve the reporting of underlying market value and liquidity risk

(compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009). Improved reporting of financial instruments (compulsory for

 financial years starting January 01, 2009).

• IFRS 8: Operating segments (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009)

• IAS 1: Presentation of financial statements – comprehensive revision, including the requirements regarding presentation of the over-

all result (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009); modifications with regard to the reporting of cancelable

instruments and the liquidation of resulting obligations (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009).

• IAS 23: Borrowing costs – revised version intended to prohibit immediate reporting of external borrowing costs as expenditure (com-

pulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009).

• IAS 27: Consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with IFRS – follow-up modifications to IFRS 3 (compulsory for

financial years starting July 01, 2009).

• IAS 28: Investment in associates – follow-up modifications to IFRS 3 (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009). 

• IAS 31: Interests in joint ventures – follow-on modifications in the wake of changes to IFRS 3 (compulsory for financial years starting

July 01, 2009).

• IAS 32: Financial instruments (reporting and presentation) – modifications with regard to reporting of cancelable financial instruments

and with regard to liquidation of resulting liabilities (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009); modifications

with regard to the classification of subscription rights (compulsory for financial years starting February 01, 2010).

• IAS 39: Financial instruments (recognition and measurement) – modifications with regard to risk positions which qualify for hedge

accounting (compulsory for financial years starting July 01, 2009); modifications of IAS 39 and IFRIC 9 with regard to the

reclassification of embedded derivatives (compulsory for financial years starting July 01, 2009).

The 2008 Annual Improvement Umbrella Standard 

In 2008, the IASB promulgated an “umbrella standard” containing a series of minor modifications to previously released publications. These

involve changes to accounting methods as well as editorial adjustments and modified terminology. Insofar as an individual standard does

not provide otherwise, these modifications must be applied in all financial years starting January 01, 2009. 

• IFRIC 13: Customer loyalty programmes (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2009).

• IFRIC 14: The limit on a defined-benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction (compulsory for financial years

 starting January 01, 2009).

• IFRIC 15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2010)

• IFRIC 16: Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (compulsory for financial years starting July 01, 2009)

• IFRIC 17: Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (compulsory for financial years starting July 01, 2009).

• IFRIC 18: Transfers of assets from customers (compulsory for all transfers received starting November 01, 2009).

• IFRIC 19: Amortization/repayment of financial liabilities by means of equity capital instruments (compulsory for financial years starting

July 01, 2010).

The following standards have also been adopted by the IASB, but have yet to be incorporated into EU law:

• IFRS 1: First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – additional provisions intended to facilitate first-time use

(compulsory for all financial years starting January 01, 2010). 

• IFRS 2: Share-based payment – modification with regard to share-based compensation within the Group, insofar it takes the form of

cash (compulsory for financial years starting January 01, 2010). 

The 2009 Annual Improvement Umbrella Standard

In 2009, the IASB promulgated an “umbrella standard” containing a series of minor modifications to previously released publications. These

involve changes to accounting methods as well as editorial adjustments and modified terminology. Insofar as an individual standard does

not provide otherwise, these modifications must be applied for all financial years starting January 1, 2010. The umbrella standard has not

yet been incorporated into EU law. 
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The Executive Board is not expecting the application of these standards to have any significant effects on the consolidated financial state-

ments in future reporting periods. The following standards are relevant to the consolidated financial statements:

• IFRS 3: This newly established standard gives the purchaser the option to choose the "full goodwill method", which allows for full

reporting of company goodwill. The standards also provides that ancillary acquisition costs (except for costs of issuing debt

instruments or equity capital instruments) are to be henceforward reported immediately as expenditures. In case of a multi-

step acquisition, the IFRS 3 standard calls for a mandatory revaluation of acquired assets and liabilities at such time as  control

is transferred. To a certain extent, moreover, the following are to be reported as equity capital transactions performed with

owners: 1) Sales of shareholdings in subsidiaries that do not involve the giving up of control. 2) Acquisitions of additional

shareholdings in subsidiaries, above and beyond a controlling interest. 

• IFRS 8: This standard replaces IAS 14, which used to govern segmental reporting. Instead of a risk/reward approach, the new IFRS 8

standard now calls for a management approach to segmental reporting. According to this approach, the segment definition

is no longer geared towards product/services or customer groups, but instead towards the group’s internal organization-

al/reporting structure. Thus, even sectors that are not on the external market can be recorded as potential segments. IFRS 8

furthermore requires the segment information to be aligned to the internally reported figures for the purposes of budgeting

and performance review. Accordingly, IFRS 8 does not define the terms revenue, expenditure, asset and liability, requiring

instead an explanation of these terms from the reporting company. 

• IAS 1: The revised IAS 1 standard is intended to make it easier for users to analyze and compare annual financial statements. IAS

1 regulates the basis, structure and minimum requirements for a financial statement. The revised standard provides for new

terminology, additional information and presentation information with regard to balance sheets, profit and loss accounts and

a statement of changes in equity.

34. Earnings per share 

The earnings per share calculated according to IAS 33 is based on the division of the period result attributable to the parent company of

F6,466k (previous year: F7,581k) by the 4,258,140 (previous year: 4,317,050) shares on average circulating during the financial year.

There is no difference between the diluted and undiluted earnings per share because there was no dilution.

The weighted average of the shares in circulation was 4,258,140 in the year under review. In the previous year, the weighted average of the

shares in circulation totaled 4,317,050.

35. Notifications in accordance with § 21 Paragraph 1 and Paragraph 1a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) 

ISRA VISION AG has been notified of the existence of shareholdings in accordance with § 21 Paragraph 1 or Paragraph 1a of the German

Securities Trading Act (Wertpapierhandelsgesetz). The contents of the notifications are contained in the annex to the individual financial state-

ments.

36. Declaration of conformity with the German Corporate Governance Code 

As the only company currently publicly listed in Germany that is included in the consolidated annual financial statements, ISRA VISION AG

has submitted the Declaration of Compliance prescribed by § 161 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) and has made it accessi-

ble to shareholders.

Number of shares in circulation

September 30, 2008 4,291,168

Own shares repurchased 86,700

Issued shares 43,300

Own shares sold 65,421

September 30, 2009 4,313,189
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37. Auditors’ fees

38. Risk Management

Principles of risk management

In terms of its business, ISRA is subject to market risks, in particular currency, interest, liquidity and credit risks. 

The objective of risk management is to counter these risks by taking active measures and limiting them as far as possible. 

Currency risks

The currency risks primarily result from investments and operational activities.

A 10 percent increase in the EUR/USD exchange rate would lead to the results being reduced by €-167k Euros (previous year: €-864k).

The equity capital would drop by €-317k (previous year: €-713k). A 10 percent decrease in the EUR/USD exchange rate would lead to the

results being increased by €205k (previous year: €1,056k). Equity capital would change by €388k (previous year: €904k).

Currencies other than the USD do not play a significant roll for ISRA.

Interest risks

Interest risks result from original financial instruments with variable or fixed interest rates if they are assessed at their current fair value.

Accordingly any financial instruments with fixed interest that are valued at amortised costs are not concerned by interest change risks as

defined in IFRS 7. 

ISRA VISION AG is subject to interest risks only in the EURO zone. The overwhelming number of bank liabilities designed to bear interest

at a variable rate. 

An interest sensitivity analysis using interest rates from 2008/2009 yields the following results:

If the market interest level as of September 30, 2009 had been 100 base points higher (lower), the result before taxes would have been

F160k lower (higher) (previous year: F320k). The equity capital would have dropped (risen) by F111k (previous year: F320k).

The interest sensitivity analysis is subject to the following assumptions:

The bank liabilities existing as of the September 30, 2009 reporting date may be considered representative for the entire financial year. The

analysis only involves original financial instruments that bear variable interest.

Liquidity risks

The following table presents the contractually stipulated (undiscounted) interest and repayments of the financial liabilities:

This table includes all liabilities that existed as of the September 30, 2009 reporting date and for which payments were contractually stipu-

lated. An acceptance of new liabilities was not taken into account. The variable interest rate payments associated with financial instruments

were calculated on the basis of an average interest rate for financial year 2008/2009.

The future cash outflow expected from the financial liabilities will be covered by the operative business, receivables and the available lines

of credit.

(in F thousands) Reporting year Previous year

Audit of annual financial statements 198 177

Other certification and valuation services 14 9

Tax advisory services 15 27

Other services 35 10

Total 262 223

Book value Cash Flows as of 09/10 Cash Flows as of 10/11 Cash Flows as of 11/12
Sept. 30,

(in F thousands) 2009 Interest Amortization Interest Amortization Interest Amortization

Bank liabilities 29,153 797 2,228 627 3,710 1,500 23,215

Book value Cash Flows as of 08/09 Cash Flows as of 09/10 Cash Flows as of 10/11
Sept. 30,

(in F thousands) 2008 Interest Amortization Interest Amortization Interest Amortization

Bank liabilities 36,095 1,575 1,210 1,520 1,210 3,866 33,675
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Price risks

There were no significant price risks as of the reporting date. 

Credit risks

ISRA conducts business with credit-worthy third parties only. The majority of the customer structure consists of multinational companies with

a high level of creditworthiness. By splitting the total receivables into various sub-areas and due to constant monitoring of the inventory of

receivables, there is no significant nonpayment risk. The maximum nonpayment risk is limited to the declared book value. There are no sig-

nificant concentrations of non-payment risks. Due to the customer structure, there is similarly no risk concentration. For other financial assets,

such as cash and cash equivalents, the maximum credit risk matches the book value of these instruments if the contracting party fails to

pay. 

The non-payment risk will be accommodated by specific allowances for bad debts and commercial credit insurance.

Financing risks

The loans granted by banks are subject to contractually agreed terms and key operating numbers. These key operating numbers are

verified each quarter (based on the quarterly results published on the internet) as well as on each balance sheet date (based on the

results published in the consolidated financial statements). Insofar as the agreed terms are found to have been breached, the creditors

have the right to demand accelerated repayment of their claims. 

Supervisory Board

Dr. Ing. h. c. Heribert J. Wiedenhues, Lahnstein – Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board of PM – International AG, Speyer; Member of

the Administrative Board of PM – International AG, Luxemburg; Member of the Advisory Committee (Chairman) of ADVISORY Partners

GmbH, Wiesbaden; Advisory Board Member (Chairman) of VITRULAN International GmbH, Marktschorgast; Advisor of BERGROHR GmbH,

Siegen; Chairman of the Advisory Board of PROMECON GmbH, Barleben/ Magdeburg; Supervisory Board Chairman (since September

2007)

Dr. Wolfgang Witz, attorney, Frankfurt; additional Supervisory Board positions: Deputy Chairman of the Advisory Committee of Troester GmbH

& Co. KG, Hannover; Deputy Chairman of the Advisory Board of TET Systems Holding GmbH & Co. KG, Heidelberg; Deputy Chairman of

the Supervisory Board (since February 2000)

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Dipl.-Ing. Dr. Henning Tolle, Professor Emeritus, Rossdorf, (former Chairman of the Supervisory Board from February 2000

to September 2007) 

Mr. Schling is the chief representative of Volkswagen AG and was previously the head of the group’s quality assurance, Hofheim (Taunus)

(since March 2008)

Stefan Müller, Königsbrunn, Senior Consultant to the Board of Management of KUKA Roboter GmbH (since July 2007)

Dr. Georg is the president of the MCIC GmbH (Management Consulting International Cooperation GmbH), Usingen (since October 2007)

The following business relations exist between the members of the Supervisory Board and the Company:

• Dr. Wolfgang Witz is a partner of the law firm Allen & Overy, Frankfurt am Main. Allen & Overy provides the Company with advice with

respect to stock and stock exchange law and corporate acquisitions. 

Executive Board

Enis Ersü, Darmstadt (Chairman)

Hans Jürgen Christ, Ober-Ramstadt (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. Johannes Giet, Eggenstein 

Werner Rothermel, Alsbach-Hähnlein
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List of significant share ownership as of September 30, 2009 

Indirect investment
Name and domicile of the company Shareholding (in percent) via affliate (no.)

Parent company

ISRA VISON AG, Darmstadt, Germany

Shareholdings in affiliated companies

1. ISRA VISION LLC, Sterling Hights/Michigan, USA a), b) 100

2. ISRA VISION SYSTEMS INC., Lansing/Michigan, USA 100 1.

3. ISRA SURFACE VISION GmbH, Herten, Germany 100

4. INNOMESS Corp., Chicago/Illinois, USA b) 100 3.

5. ISRA VISION LASOR GmbH, Oerlinghausen, Germany 100

6. ISRA SURFACE VISION INC., Duluth/Georgia, USA 100 5.

7. NANOsystems LLC, Gainsville/Georgia, USA b) 100 2.,3.

8. ISRA VISION GmbH, Darmstadt, Germany b) 100

9. ISRA VISION (Shanghai) Co. LTD., Shanghai, China d) 100

10. ISRA VISION SYSTEMS OF CANADA Inc., Windsor, Canada b), c) 100

11. ISRA VISION Ltd., London, United Kingdom 100

12. Image Automation Inc., Columbus, USA 100 6.

13. ISRA VISION Parsytec AG, Aachen, Germany 95

14. ISRA Parsytec GmbH, Aachen, Germany 95

15. Parsytec Solutions GmbH, Erkelenz, Germany 95

16. Parsytec Japan Co., Ltd., Tokio, Japan 95

17. Parsytec Asia/Pacific Co., Ltd., Seoul, South Korea 95

18. ISRA VISION Parsytec Inc., Chicago, USA 95 14.

19. ISRA VISION Parsytec Ltd., Hampshire, United Kingdom 95 14.

20. metronom Automation GmbH, Mainz, Germany d) 100

21. ISRA VISION INDIA Private Limited, Mumbai, India b), c) 100

a) Holding company.   b) Not operational.   c) Capital not paid in.   d) Different balance sheet date than the parent.

Declaration of the legal representatives

To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles for financial reporting, the consolidated financial

statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group, and the group management

report of the group includes a fair view of the development and performance of the business and the position of the group, together with a

description of the principal opportunities and risks associated with the expected development of the group.

Darmstadt, January 18, 2010

The Executive Board

Payments to the members of Executive and Supervisory Board 

The payments to the members of the Executive Board include variable components which may, in individual cases, amount to up to 30 per-

cent of basic pay. They are annually revised by the Supervisory Board on base of objectives. Payments to the executive board totaled F876k

in the financial year (previous year: F804k). The total share options issued as of September 30, 2009 come to 0 stock options (previous

year: 0). The fair value for these stock options totaled €0 as of the balance sheet date (previous year: F0). In the financial year, no new option

rights were granted. The cost of the utilized options is included in the remuneration of the Executive Board.

The payments to the members of the Supervisory Board for their activities totaled F53k (previous year: F53k) in the period under review. No

option rights have been granted to members of the Supervisory Board.

Darmstadt, January 18, 2010

ISRA VISION AG

The Executive Board
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Reproduction of the Auditor’s Report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements - comprising the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated income statement,

consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and notes, as well as the management report, pre-

pared by ISRA VISION AG, Darmstadt, for the financial year from October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2009. The preparation of the con-

solidated financial statements and the management report in accordance with IFRS, as to be applied in the EU, and supplementary

according to the accounting principles of $ 315a Paragraph 1 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) as well as additional regulations

by the articles of incorporation is the responsibility of the company’s legal representatives. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

about the consolidated financial statements and the management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with § 317 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and

generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). These standards

and regulations require that we plan and perform the audit in such a manner, that inaccuracies and violations which have a material

impact on the presentation of the status of the Group with respect to its assets and its financial and profit situation, as given by the

 consolidated financial statements prepared under consideration of the principles of accounting to be applied, can be detected with

 sufficient certainty. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Group and expectations con-

cerning possible errors are taken into account in the determination of the audit procedures.

The effectiveness of the internal system for the control of accounting principles, and the evidence supporting disclosures in the  con -

solidated financial statements and the management report are mostly examined on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The

audit includes the assessment of the annual financial statements of the companies incorporated in the consolidated statement, of the

composition of the companies included in the consolidated statement, of the accounting principles used and of significant estimates

made by the legal representatives, as well as an evaluation of the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and the

management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our assessment.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

Due to our assessment based on the results of our audit, the consolidated financial statements are in accordance with IFRS, as to be

applied in the EU, and supplementary according to the accounting principles of § 315a Paragraph 1 of the German Commercial Code

(HGB) as well as additional regulations by the articles of incorporation, and, considering these rules, provides a suitable understanding

of the Group’s actual assets and its financial and profit situation. The management report complies with the consolidated financial

 statements, gives a true and fair view of the Group’s situation and describes chances and risks of its future development appropriately.”

Frankfurt am Main, January 25, 2010

PKF Deutschland GmbH

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

R. Brinskelle S. Varughese

Auditor Auditor
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